
AGENDA 
 

CITY OF PEARLAND 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

 
 
 
 
 

       Henry Fuertes                     Daniel Tunstall 
             P&Z CHAIRPERSON           P&Z VICE-CHAIRPERSON 
 
 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

 
 
  
               Elizabeth McLane                  Derrick Reed 
 
 
 
 
 

  
          

Mary Starr                Ginger McFadden 
     

        
 
 
 

Thomas Duncan 
 
 

 
 

December 15, 2014  6:00 p.m. 

In accordance with the Texas Open Meeting Act the Agenda is posted for public information, at all 
times, for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of the meeting on the bulletin board 
located at the front entrance of the City Hall, 3519 Liberty Drive. 

 



 
 

 
 

 
P&Z Regular Meeting Agenda 

December 15, 2014 
Page 1 of 4 

 

 

AGENDA - REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, MONDAY, DECEMBER 15, 2014, AT 6:00 
P.M., HELD IN FIRST FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM,  CITY HALL,  3519 LIBERTY 
DRIVE, PEARLAND, TEXAS  I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
II. CONSENT AGENDA    
  

All items listed under the “Consent Agenda” are considered to be routine 
and require little or no deliberation by the P&Z Commission. These items 
will be enacted / approved by one motion unless a commissioner requests 
separate action on an item, in which event the item will be removed from 
the Consent Agenda and considered by separate action (ix. Matters 
removed from Consent Agenda). Approval of the Consent Agenda enacts 
the items of legislation. 
 
A. CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

AND EXCUSED ABSENCES 
 
1. Approve the Minutes of the November 17, 2014 P&Z Regular Meeting, 

held at 6:30 p.m. 
2. Approve the Minutes of the December 1, 2014 P&Z Regular Meeting, 

held at 6:30 p.m. 
3. Excuse the Absence of Elizabeth McLane from the December 1, 2014 

P&Z Regular meeting. 
 
III. OLD BUSINESS  

 
A. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – CONDITIONAL USE 

PERMIT APPLICATION NO. 2014-09  
 
A request of BGE Kerry R. Gilbert & Associates, applicant; on behalf of 
George Fishman, owner; for approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow 
for a Nursing/Convalescent Home within the Business Park – 288 (BP-288) 
zoning district, on approximately 9.4 acres of land, to wit: 
 
Legal Description:  Being a 9.4083 tract of land located in the H.T. & B.R.R. 
Company Survey, Abstract 300, Brazoria County Texas; said 9.4083 acre 
tract being all of a called 3.39 acre tract of land recorded in the name of 
George D. and Mary Fishman in Clerk’s File Number 2005061002 of the 
Official Records of Brazoria County (O.R.B.C.) Texas, the remainder of a 
called 3.3 acre tract of land (North 3.3 acres) recorded in the name of 



 
 

 
 

 
P&Z Regular Meeting Agenda 

December 15, 2014 
Page 2 of 4 

 

 

George D. and Mary Fishman in Clerk’s File Number 97-015077 of the 
O.R.B.C. and the remainder of a called 3.3 acre tract of land (South 3.3 
acres) recorded in the name of George D. and Mary Fishman in Clerk’s File 
Number 97-010496 of the O.R.B.C. 
 
General Location:  West side of Business Center Drive, south of Pearland 
Town Center, Pearland, TX 

 
B. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – PLANNING AND ZONING 

VARIANCE 2014-05  
 
A request by Luther Daly of Costello, Inc., applicant; on behalf of George and 
Mary Fishman, owner; for approval of a Planning and Zoning Variance to 
allow for a flag lot within the existing Business Park 288 (BP-288) zoning 
district on 9.4083 acres of land, to wit: 
 
Legal Description: A subdivision of 9.4083 acres of land located in the  
H.T.& B.R.R. Company Survey, Abstract 300, Brazoria County, Texas. 
 
General Location: Located on the west side of Business Center Drive, 
south of Pearland Town Center. 
 

IV. NEW BUSINESS  
 
A. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – ZONE CHANGE 

APPLICATION NO. 2014-21Z 
 

A request of Alan Mueller, applicant; on behalf of Joe and Darlene Laney and 
John McMahan, owners; for approval of a zoning designation of Single Family 
- 1 (R-1) on approximately 32.3 acres of land, to wit: 
 
Legal Description:  The East one half (1/2) of the Southeast Quarter (SE ¼) 
of the Northeast Quarter (NE ¼) of Section 84, H.T.& B.R.R. Survey, Abstract 
No. 538, Brazoria County, Texas and being the same land conveyed to B. 
Frank Wood by Jay C. Tulk by Deed dated April 11, 1955, Recorded in 
Volume 627, Page 278, Deed Records, Brazoria County, Texas and; 
 
The West one half (1/2) of the Southeast Quarter (SE ¼) of the Northeast 
Quarter (NE ¼) of Section 84, H.T.& B.R.R. Survey, Abstract No. 538, called 
Tract No. 8, Brazoria County, Texas according to the recorded map or plat 
therof appearing of record in the office of the County Clerk of Galveston 
County, Texas and being the same land described from J.T. McMahan to R. 
D. McMahan, dated October 27, 1964, recorded in Volume 895, Page 22, 
Deed Records of Brazoria County, Texas and being that same 20 acres more 



 
 

 
 

 
P&Z Regular Meeting Agenda 

December 15, 2014 
Page 3 of 4 

 

 

or less, conveyed to John T. McMahan by R.D. McMahan and wife, Eunice 
McMahan, by Deed dated December 29, 1994, Filed of Record March 13, 
2003, recorded under Brazoria County Clerks File No. 03 015336, and; 
 
A 2.72 acre tract, being the remainder of two (2) 1.5 acre tracts, recorded in 
Volume (87) 403, Page 70 [Tract 1] and Volume (87) 403, Page 73 [Tract 2], 
of the Official Records of Brazoria County, Texas, out of the North ½ of the 
East ½ of the Southeast ¼ of the Northeast ¼ of section 84, of the H.T.& B. 
Railroad Company Survey, Abstract 538, Brazoria County, Texas  
 
General Location:  West of County Road 48 and 2000 feet south of 
Broadway St., Pearland, TX 

 
B. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – BEAZER CR 48 CLUSTER 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 

A request by Alan Mueller, applicant; on behalf of Joe and Darlene Laney 
and John McMahan, owner; for approval of a Cluster Development Plan, on 
a 31.127 acre tract of land, for a single-family residential subdivision, to wit 
 
Legal Description: The East one half (1/2) of the Southeast Quarter (SE ¼) 
of the Northeast Quarter (NE ¼) of Section 84, H.T.& B.R.R. Survey, 
Abstract No. 538, Brazoria County, Texas and being the same land 
conveyed to B. Frank Wood by Jay C. Tulk by Deed dated April 11, 1955, 
Recorded in Volume 627, Page 278, Deed Records, Brazoria County, Texas 
and; 
 
The West one half (1/2) of the Southeast Quarter (SE ¼) of the Northeast 
Quarter (NE ¼) of Section 84, H.T.& B.R.R. Survey, Abstract No. 538, called 
Tract No. 8, Brazoria County, Texas according to the recorded map or plat 
therof appearing of record in the office of the County Clerk of Galveston 
County, Texas and being the same land described from J.T. McMahan to R. 
D. McMahan, dated October 27, 1964, recorded in Volume 895, Page 22, 
Deed Records of Brazoria County, Texas and being that same 20 acres 
more or less, conveyed to John T. McMahan by R.D. McMahan and wife, 
Eunice McMahan, by Deed dated December 29, 1994, Filed of Record 
March 13, 2003, recorded under Brazoria County Clerks File No. 03 015336, 
and; 
 
A 2.72 acre tract, being the remainder of two (2) 1.5 acre tracts, recorded in 
Volume (87) 403, Page 70 [Tract 1] and Volume (87) 403, Page 73 [Tract 2], 
of the Official Records of Brazoria County, Texas, out of the North ½ of the 
East ½ of the Southeast ¼ of the Northeast ¼ of section 84, of the H.T.& B. 
Railroad Company Survey, Abstract 538, Brazoria County, Texas. 



 
 

 
 

 
P&Z Regular Meeting Agenda 

December 15, 2014 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 

General Location: West of County Road 48 and 2000 feet south of 
Broadway St., Pearland 

 
C. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

1. Commissioners Activity Report 
2. Comprehensive Plan Update 
3. Next P&Z Meeting, January 5, 2015 – Regular Meeting  

 
V. ADJOURNMENT 
 
This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, please call 
Young Lorfing at 281-652-1655 prior to the meeting so that appropriate 
arrangements can be made. 
 
 
I, Jennifer Tatum, Office Assistant of the City of Pearland, Texas, do hereby certify that 
the foregoing agenda was posted in a place convenient to the general public at City Hall 
on the 13th day of November 2014, A.D., at 5:30 p.m. 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Jennifer Tatum, Office Assistant  
 
 
Agenda removed  __________________  day of December, 2014. 



 

 

II. Consent Agenda Items 
 

All items listed under the “Consent Agenda” are considered to be 

routine and require little or no deliberation by the P&Z Commission. 

These items will be enacted / approved by one motion unless a 

commissioner requests separate action on an item, in which event 

the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered 

by separate action (ix. Matters removed from Consent Agenda). 

Approval of the Consent Agenda enacts the items of legislation. 



 

 
 

A. Approval of Minutes and Excused 
Absences 

 

1. Approve the Minutes of the November 17, 2014 P&Z Regular Meeting, 
held at 6:30 p.m. 

2. Approve the Minutes of the December 1, 2014 P&Z Regular Meeting, 
held at 6:30 p.m. 

3. Excuse the Absence of Elizabeth McLane from the December 1, 2014 
P&Z Regular meeting. 

 



 
 

 

 
Minutes of the P&Z Regular Meeting Agenda 

November 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 10 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, MONDAY, NOVEMBER 17, 
2014, AT 7:00 P.M., HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS,  CITY HALL,  3519 
LIBERTY DRIVE, PEARLAND, TEXAS 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes opened the meeting for the P&Z Regular Meeting at 
8:15 p.m. 
In attendance were: 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes 
P&Z Vice Chairperson Daniel Tunstall 
P&Z Member Elizabeth McLane 
P&Z Member Derrick Reed 
P&Z Member Mary Starr 
P&Z Member Ginger McFadden 
P&Z Member Thomas Duncan 
 
CONSENT AGENDA      

 
CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – APPROVAL OF MINUTES AND 
EXCUSED ABSENCES 

 
Approve the Minutes of the October 20, 2014 P&Z Regular Meeting, held at 6:30 p.m. 
Excuse the Absence of Linda Cowles and Ginger McFadden from the October 20, 2014 
P&Z Regular meeting. 

 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – FINAL PLAT OF HIGHLAND PARK 
 
A request by Rene Rodriguez of LJA Engineering, applicant; on behalf of Beazer 
Homes Texas, LP, owner; for approval of a Preliminary Plat of Highland Park, a 56 lot 
subdivision on 19.445 acres of land, to wit: 

 
Legal Description: A subdivision of land containing 19.455 acres of land situated in the 
H.T. & B.R.R. Co. Survey, Section 1, Abstract 233, and the D.H.M. Hunter Survey Abstract 
76, City of Pearland Texas, County of Brazoria, Texas.  

 

General Location: Generally located at the intersection of Old Alvin Rd. and Highland 
Park Dr.  
 
P&Z Commissioner Mary Starr made the motion to approve the Consent Agenda, P&Z 
Commissioner Elizabeth McLane seconded. 
 
The vote was 7 – 0.  The Items on the Consent Agenda were approved. 



 
 

 

 
Minutes of the P&Z Regular Meeting Agenda 

November 17, 2014 
Page 2 of 10 

 

MATTERS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA   
 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – REPLAT OF SHADOW CREEK 
RANCH – SF 57  

 
A request by Rene Rodriguez, from LJA, applicant, on behalf of 741 SCR, LTD, owner, 
for approval of a Replat of Shadow Creek Ranch - SF 57, a 94 lot residential subdivision 
on 23,470 acres of land, to wit: 

 
Legal Description: A subdivision of 23.470 acres of land situated in the F. Hooper 
Survey, Abstract 198 and the H.T.& B.R.R. Co. Survey, Section 83, Abstract 761, City 
of Pearland, Fort Bend County, Texas, same being a Partial Replat of Shadow Creek 
Ranch SF-57, a subdivision recorded in Plat No. 20060296, Plat Records of Fort Bend 
County, Texas. 

 
General Location: Located at the northeast corner of Windward Bay Drive and 
Broadway Street.  
 
No action needed at this time. 
 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – REPLAT OF SHADOW CREEK 
RANCH – SF 58 
 
A request by Rene Rodriguez, from LJA, applicant; on behalf of 741 SCR, LTD, owner; 
for approval of a Replat of Shadow Creek Ranch - SF 58, a 54 lot residential subdivision 
located on 12.975 acres of land, to wit: 

 
Legal Description: A subdivision of 12.975 acres of land situated in the H.T. & B.R.R. 
Company Survey, Section 83, Abstract 761, City of Pearland, Fort Bend County, Texas, 
same being a Partial Replat of Shadow Creek Ranch SF-58, a subdivision recorded in 
Plat No. 20060297, Plat Records of Fort Bend County, Texas. 

 
General Location: Located on the south side of Windward Bay Drive north of Shadow 
Ridge.  
 
No action needed at this time. 
 
FINAL PLAT OF HIGHLAND CROSSING SECTION 4 
 
A request by Geoff Freeman of BGE Kerry Gilbert and Associates, applicant, on behalf 
of Beazer Homes, owner for approval of the Preliminary Plat of Highland Crossing 
Section 4, a 34 lot single family subdivision on 14.8 acres of land generally located 1000 
feet northeast from the intersection of McHard Rd. and Old Alvin Rd. to wit: 

 



 
 

 

 
Minutes of the P&Z Regular Meeting Agenda 

November 17, 2014 
Page 3 of 10 

 

Legal Description: Being 14.8 acres of land out of the H.T. &B.R.R. Co. Survey, A-233 
and D.H.M. Hunter Survey, A-76 City of Pearland. Brazoria County, Texas. 

 
General Location: Approximately 1000 feet northeast from the intersection of McHard 
Rd. and Old Alvin Rd.   
 
P&Z Vice Chairperson Daniel Tunstall stated that he had an issue with the process; this 
is why he moved to remove this item from the consent agenda. Mr. Tunstall stated that 
he did not like seeing projects taking so long to be finished and finals should not be 
voted on until they were complete. Senior Planner Ian Clowes stated that he was not 
sure of the status, but a subdivision agreement was in place. 
  
P&Z Vice Chairperson Daniel Tunstall made the motion to approve Final plat of 
Highland Crossing Section 4, P&Z Commissioner Mary Starr seconded. 
 
The vote was 6 – 1 with Daniel Tunstall in in opposition. Final Plat of Highland Crossing 
Section 4 was approved. 
 
OLD BUSINESS – (ITEMS POSTPONED TO JANUARY 30, 2015) 

 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
APPLICATION NO. 2014-09  

 
A request of BGE Kerry R. Gilbert & Associates, applicant; on behalf of George 
Fishman, owner; for approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow for a 
Nursing/Convalescent Home within the Business Park – 288 (BP-288) zoning district, 
on approximately 9.4 acres of land, to wit: 

 
Legal Description:  Being a 9.4083 tract of land located in the H.T. & B.R.R. Company 
Survey, Abstract 300, Brazoria County Texas; said 9.4083 acre tract being all of a 
called 3.39 acre tract of land recorded in the name of George D. and Mary Fishman in 
Clerk’s File Number 2005061002 of the Official Records of Brazoria County (O.R.B.C.) 
Texas, the remainder of a called 3.3 acre tract of land (North 3.3 acres) recorded in the 
name of George D. and Mary Fishman in Clerk’s File Number 97-015077 of the 
O.R.B.C. and the remainder of a called 3.3 acre tract of land (South 3.3 acres) recorded 
in the name of George D. and Mary Fishman in Clerk’s File Number 97-010496 of the 
O.R.B.C. 

 
General Location:  West side of Business Center Drive, south of Pearland Town 
Center, Pearland, TX 
 
No Action needed at this time. 
 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – PLANNING AND ZONING VARIANCE 
2014-05  



 
 

 

 
Minutes of the P&Z Regular Meeting Agenda 

November 17, 2014 
Page 4 of 10 

 

A request by Luther Daly of Costello, Inc., applicant; on behalf of George and Mary 
Fishman, owner; for approval of a Planning and Zoning Variance to allow for a flag lot 
within the existing Business Park 288 (BP-288) zoning district on 9.4083 acres of land, 
to wit: 

 
Legal Description: A subdivision of 9.4083 acres of land located in the  H.T.& B.R.R. 
Company Survey, Abstract 300, Brazoria County, Texas. 

 
General Location: Located on the west side of Business Center Drive, south of 
Pearland Town Center. 
 
No action needed at this time. 

 
NEW BUSINESS  

 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION NO. 
2014-19Z 

 

A request of Chad Thumann, applicant; on behalf of Wayne Thumann, owner; for 
approval of a change in zoning from the General Commercial (GC) and General 
Business (GB) zoning districts to the General Business (GB) and Single Family - 1 (R-1) 
zoning districts; on approximately 2.734 acres of land, to wit: 
Legal Description:  Being 1.385 acres of land out of called 14.0513 acres of land, said 
14.135 being all of Lots 9 and 12 and Part of Lot 7 of partition of the East ½ of 
Northwest ¼  of Section 15, HT&B RR Co. Survey, A-241, Brazoria County, Texas and 
being the South 183.60 feet of Lot 8, and a portion of Lot 7 out of a called 14.0513 acre 
tract being all of Lots 9 and 12 and Part of Lot 7 of partition of the East ½ of Northwest 
¼  of Section 15, HT&B RR Co. Survey, A-241, Brazoria County, Texas. According to 
the Plat recorded in Vol. 441, Page 265 of the Deed Records of Brazoria County, Texas  

 
General Location:  6906 Broadway Street, Pearland, TX 
 
Senior Planner Ian Clowes read the staff report and stated staff recommended 
approval. 
 
Chad Thumann was present on behalf of the applicant. Mr. Thumann made a brief 
presentation and stated he was available to answer any questions. No further 
discussion ensued. 
 
P&Z Commissioner Mary Starr made the motion to approve Zone Change application 
2014-19Z, P&Z Commissioner Derrick Reed seconded. 
 
The vote was 7 – 0. Zone Change application 2014-19Z was approved. 
 
 



 
 

 

 
Minutes of the P&Z Regular Meeting Agenda 

November 17, 2014 
Page 5 of 10 

 

CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION NO. 
2014-20Z 

 
A request of BGE Kerry R. Gilbert and Associates, applicant; on behalf of CL Ashton 
Woods, LP., owner; for approval of a change in zoning to amend the Southern Trails 
Planned Development (PD), from an overlay zoning district which allows for 
Civic/Church uses to General Business (GB) uses; on approximately 0.9 acres of land 
of the total 522.62 acres, to wit:  

 
Legal Description:  A certain parcel of ground together with all the buildings and 
improvements being a portion of No. 2 Southern Trails Commercial No. 1, H.T. and 
B.R.R. Company Survey, Section 84, A-538, City of Pearland, Brazoria County, Texas  

 
General Location:  South side of Broadway Street, between Windward Bay Drive to the 
west and Kingsley Drive to the east, Pearland, TX 
 
City Planner Johnna Matthews read the staff report stating staff recommended 
approval. Mr. Kerry Gilbert was present on behalf of the applicant. Mr. Gilbert stated 
that they were looking at retail, office professional or medical and that they were happy 
to agree with the possibilities of use restrictions. P&Z Commissioner Derrick Reed 
inquired about what kind of retail was being looked at and stated he would like to see 
restrictions put in place. Mr. Gilbert stated that they were unsure at the moment. P&Z 
Chairperson Henry Fuertes inquired whether or not the PD had restrictions on General 
Business (GB) from the beginning. City Planner Johnna Matthews replied no.  
 
Director of Community Development Lata Krishnarao stated that staff was looking to 
continue a tree lined street on the adjacent stretch as required in the PD. Mr. Kerry 
Gilbert stated that this land was not owned by the applicant and therefor they would be 
unable to plant the trees. P&Z Vice Chairperson Daniel Tunstall stated that the 
subdivision could be asked to beautify the property and that the request for the 
applicant to do so could not be done. City Planner Johnna Matthews stated that staff 
was requesting height, lot coverage, and set back standards. Mr. Kerry Gilbert stated he 
was fine with this request. 
 
P&Z Commissioner Mary Starr made the motion to approve Zone Change application 
2014-20Z, P&Z Commissioner Ginger McFadden seconded with the following 
restrictions: 
 
The following uses shall be prohibited: 

 Automobile and Automobile-Service Related Uses 

 Animal/Pet-Related Uses 

 Big Box/Department Stores 

 Stand-Alone Restaurants 

 Drive-Thru Restaurants 
 



 
 

 

 
Minutes of the P&Z Regular Meeting Agenda 

November 17, 2014 
Page 6 of 10 

 

Screening to buffer the proposed non-residential development from the existing single 
family subdivisions to the West and South shall be consistent in design, including 
height, material, color, etc., with the existing screening wall provided by CVS to buffer 
against adjacent single family subdivisions. 

 
The vote was 7 – 0. Zone Change application 2014-20Z was approved with the 
following conditions: 
 
 
The following uses shall be prohibited: 

 Automobile and Automobile-Service Related Uses 

 Animal/Pet-Related Uses 

 Big Box/Department Stores 

 Stand-Alone Restaurants 

 Drive-Thru Restaurants 
 

Screening to buffer the proposed non-residential development from the existing single 
family subdivisions to the West and South shall be consistent in design, including 
height, material, color, etc., with the existing screening wall provided by CVS to buffer 
against adjacent single family subdivisions. 
 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – LONGVIEW CLUSTER 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 
A request by Jonathan Woodruff of DR Horton, applicant; on behalf of Assan Tran, 
owner; for approval of a Cluster Development Plan, on a 9.56 acre tract of land, for a 
single-family residential subdivision, to wit: 
 
Legal Description: Being a 9.560 acre tract in the W.D.C. Hall League, Abstract No. 70, 
Brazoria County, Texas. Said tract is a part of Lot 15 of the Geo. W. Jenkins 
Subdivision as recorded in Volume 657, Page 616-617 of the Brazoria County Map 
Records and is further described in deeds to W. O. Forrest and Mary Evelyn Forrest as 
recorded in Volume 657, Page 275 and Volume 694, Page 401 of the Brazoria County 
Deed Records.  

General Location: Northwest corner of Dixie Farm Road and Forrest Lane Drive. 
 
Senior Planner Ian Clowes read the staff report and stated staff recommended approval 
and that staff was in favor of the amenities.  
 
P&Z Commissioner Thomas Duncan inquired how the residents would exit the 
subdivision. Senior Planner Ian Clowes stated that they would make a right in, and right 
out. Mr. Alan Muellar stated that they may stretch the opening in the existing median. 
P&Z Vice Chairperson Daniel Tunstall inquired if there were pipelines on the property.  
Mr. Muellar stated that there was 1 in the corridor but didn’t know the details. Mr. 
Tunstall stated that he did not like the idea of the homes being on the pipeline and 



 
 

 

 
Minutes of the P&Z Regular Meeting Agenda 

November 17, 2014 
Page 7 of 10 

 

suggested widening the lot that was on the pipeline. Mr. Muellar stated he would have 
to decrease the size of all of the lots from 60 to 55 to make that happen. Mr. Tunstall 
stated that the Planning & Zoning Commission must make this amendment as listed in 
section 3. Mr. Tunstall stated that this pipeline was a high pressure gas line it was 
unsafe. Mr. Muellar stated that high pressure was not defined. Senior planner Ian 
Clowes stated that this would be determined in the survey and platting process.  
 
P&Z Vice Chairperson Daniel Tunstall wanted to amend the motion to widen the left 
most lot on the property. P&Z Commissioner Mary Starr did not concur. 
 
P&Z Vice Chairperson Daniel Tunstall made the motion to approve the Longview 
Cluster Development Plan, P&Z Commissioner Mary Starr seconded. 
 
The vote was 6 – 1 with P&Z Commissioner Derrick Reed opposed. Longview Cluster 
Development Plan was approved.  
 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – INDEPENDENCE PLACE CLUSTER 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 
A request by Jonathan Woodruff of DR Horton, applicant; on behalf of Matt Pasternak, 
owner; for approval of a Cluster Development Plan, on a 8.64 acre tract of land, for a 
single-family residential subdivision, to wit: 

 
Legal Description: Being a 4.818 acre tract of land, located in the T.D. Yocum Survey, 
A-399, Brazoria County, Texas, out of 35.8 acre tract described as Second Tract, in the 
deed from Rose S. Settegast and Julius J. Settegast Jr. to Aaron Pasternak, Trustee, as 
described under Volume 1023, Page 297, in the County Clerk’s Records of Brazoria 
County, Texas, and; 

 
Being a 3.806 acre tract of land, located in the W.D.C. Hall Survey, A-70, Brazoria 
County, Texas, out of 297.58 acre tract described as First Tract, in the deed from Rose 
S. Settegast, and Julius J. Settegast Jr. to Aaron Pasternak, Trustee, as described 
under Volume 1023, Page 297, in the County Clerk’s Records of Brazoria County, 
Texas   

 
General Location: Northwest corner of Liberty Drive and John Lizer Road. 
 
Senior Planner Ian Clowes read the staff report stating that staff recommended denial. 
Staff recommends denial of the Independence Place Cluster Development Plan, for the 
following reasons, and with the following conditions: 

 

1. The proposed Cluster Development Plan does not appear to meet the criteria of 
approval for a Cluster Development Plan in the Unified Development Code. 

 



 
 

 

 
Minutes of the P&Z Regular Meeting Agenda 

November 17, 2014 
Page 8 of 10 

 

2. The proposed lot width reductions could be achieved by a Zone Change to R-4 
along with lot width variances from the Planning and Zoning Commission or via 
an approved Planned Development.  

 

3. Improvements proposed for Independence Park cannot count towards the 
Cluster Plan requirements and have not been approved by the City of Pearland 
Parks and Recreation Department. 

 
Mr. Clowes stated that a pipeline and creek ran thru the property, the applicant could 
not provide amenities, and that a crosswalk was wanted. Mr. Clowes also stated that 
the open space requirement was not met.  
 
Mr. Paul Groman, representing the applicant, stated they were trying to make a difficult 
site work and offered to amenitize the park. P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes stated that 
this was a difficult site and that the city was not opposed to the site.  
 
Senior Planner Ian Clowes stated that a cluster had to provide open space. Mr. Clowes 
stated that the applicant did not meet the criteria for a cluster plan and that a straight 
zone change to R-4 may be more appropriate. Mr. Clowes stated he was aware that the 
applicant did not have the time for a zone change. Mr Groman stated that time was a 
factor. P&Z Commissioner Derrick Reed inquired if a R4 zone change would be difficult 
to obtain. Mr. Alan Muellar stated it was time that was a factor. Mr. Muellar also inquired 
if there was anything that could be done to make this a cluster and if they did a R4 zone 
change would open space be required. Mr. Clowes stated that open space would not be 
required with an R4 zone change. 
 
P&Z Vice Chairperson Daniel Tunstall inquired if staff knew what the plan was for John 
Lizer. Mr. Clowes replied no. Mr. Tunstall stated that he agreed with staff in that this did 
not meet the requirements for a cluster plan and that the ditches surrounding the area 
were dangerous. Mr. Tunstall inquired what a R4 zone change required. Mr. Clowes 
stated street trees, sidewalks, and a subdivision fence. Staff brought up the fact that the 
propsed park improvement had not been approved by Parks & Recreation.  Mr. Groman 
stated they would pay a fee in lieu of the trees. Mr.Muellar stated they would plant trees 
where Parks and Recreation wanted them.  
 
P&Z Vice Chairperson Henry Fuertes inquired if this site was a flood way, and stated 
that you could not work with a flood way. Mr. Clowes replied yes, this was a flood way.  
 
Deputy City Attorney Nghiem Doan stated that everything Ian Clowes stated was 
mandatory to get a cluster plan and that this information was listed in the UDC.  
 
P&Z Commissioner Elizabeth McLane made the motion to approve the Independence 
Place Cluster Development Plan, P&Z Commissioner Ginger McFadden seconded. 
 



 
 

 

 
Minutes of the P&Z Regular Meeting Agenda 

November 17, 2014 
Page 9 of 10 

 

The vote was 5 – 2 with P&Z Commissioners Derrick Reed and Thomas Duncan 
opposed. Independence Place Cluster Development Plan was approved.  
 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – VARIANCE. 2014-06 

 
A request by Green Hollow Ltd., applicant; and owner; for approval of a Planning and 
Zoning Variance to allow for a total of 62 residential lots with one means of vehicular 
access where 2 means of vehicular access is required within the existing Single Family 
– 4 (R-4) zoning district on 16.26 acres of land., on the following described property: 

 

General Location: Located at the 1300 Block of Broadway Street. 
 
Senior Planner Ian Clowes read the staff report stating staff recommended denial. Mr. 
Clowes stated that the Fire Marshall, Roland Garcia, had sent an email asking for the 3 
additional homes to be sprinkled, but has now recanted this decision. Mr. Clowes also 
stated that staff was not in favor of this variance. 
 
Deputy City Attorney Nghiem Doan stated that the homes could be sprinkled, but that 
other access would still be required for other emergency personnel.  
 
Ms. Renee McGuire representing the applicant stated that Reserve “K” was donated to 
Forgotten Angels and in turn she purchased from them. Ms. McGuire also stated that 
Mr. Dennis Bailey spent over 20 thousand dollars on fees and permits just to have the 
city turn it down. Ms. McGuire stated that the owner of the apartment building adjacent 
to the property did not have any interest in working with them on getting the emergency 
access put in. Ms. McGuire suggested using a driveway in the Pine Hollow Center 
which is located next to Jamison Landing.  
 
Mr. Dennis Bailey stated that he met with Ian Clowes to brainstorm and he was told to 
meet with Roland Garcia. Mr. Garcia told him to sprinkle the 3 homes. Mr. Bailey then 
hired an Engineer and Architect just to have Mr. Garcia change his mind. Renee 
McGuire then inquired if the fire code was under the Fire Marshall’s discretion. Mr. 
Clowes stated that the plan did not meet the UDC Code or the Fire Code and that it did 
not meet the variance criteria. Lata Krishnarao Director of Community Development 
stated that when this property was platted, this was recognized and this is why it was 
left at 59 lots.  
 
Deputy Attorney Nghiem Doan stated that the process was done backwards and that 
the land should have been platted and then sold. Not vice versa. Mr. Doan also stated 
that this was a variance, not a way to figure out how the developer can get this 
accomplished. Mr. Doan also stated that the self-made hardship must be undone to get 
the variance approved. 
 
Mr. Clowes stated that the proposal that was handed out by Renee McGuire was 
shared with the Fire Marshall, Roland Garcia. Mr. Garcia stated to Ian Clowes  that this 



 
 

 

 
Minutes of the P&Z Regular Meeting Agenda 

November 17, 2014 
Page 10 of 10 

 

proposal did not meet the fire code and that there was a distance requirement. P&Z 
Vice Chairperson Daniel Tunstall stated that he did not have an issue with the 3 homes, 
but respected the Fire Marshall’s opinion.  
 
P&Z Commissioner Derrick Reed made the motion to approve Variance 2014-06, P&Z 
Commissioner Mary Starr seconded. 
 
The vote was 0–7 with all in opposition. Variance 2014-06 was denied.  
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 
Commissioners Activity Report- None 
 
Comprehensive Plan Update-Director of Community Development Lata Krishnarao 
stated that staff was still working with the consultant, and that after a workshop is done 
a open house would be held. Ms. Krishnarao also stated that the next APA was in April 
and would be held in Seattle. 

 
Next P&Z Meeting, December 1, 2014 – Regular Meeting and Staff Training and a 
presentation by Preston Brown. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
   
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes adjourned the P&Z Regular meeting at 9:30 p.m. 
These minutes were respectfully submitted by: 

____________________________________ 
Jennifer Tatum, Office Assistant 

 
Minutes approved as submitted and/or corrected on this 15th day of December 2014, 
A.D. 
      ____________________________________ 

Henry Fuertes, Chairperson 

 
 



P&Z Minutes of the  
Regular Meeting  

December 1, 2014 
Page 1 of 7 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION, CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, MONDAY, DECEMBER 1, 2014, 
AT 6:30 P.M., HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY 
DRIVE, PEARLAND, TEXAS 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes opened the P&Z Regular Meeting at 6:51 p.m. with the 
following present: 
 
Chairperson Henry Fuertes 
Vice Chairperson Daniel Tunstall 
Commissioner Derrick Reed 
Commissioner Mary Starr 
Commissioner Ginger McFadden 
Commissioner Thomas Duncan 
 
Also present were City Planner Johnna Matthews, Senior Planner Ian Clowes, Director 
of Community Development Lata Krishnarao, Interim City Engineer Richard Mancilla, 
Deputy City Attorney Nghiem Doan and Office Supervisor Judy Brown. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
All items listed under the “Consent Agenda” are considered to be routine and 
require little or no deliberation by the P&Z Commission. These items will be 
enacted / approved by one motion unless a commissioner requests separate 
action on an item, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent 
Agenda and considered by separate action (ix. Matters removed from Consent 
Agenda). Approval of the Consent Agenda enacts the items of legislation. 
 
Vice Chairperson Daniel Tunstall requested Item C: Consideration and Possible Action 
for Preliminary Plat of Oakshire Section 1 be removed from the Consent Agenda. 
 
The vote was 6-0.  Items B and D-F on the Consent Agenda were approved. No action 
was taken on Item A, as minutes were not provided. 
 
CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – Minutes will be provided at the next 
meeting.   
 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – FINAL PLAT OF RIVERSTONE 
RANCH AT SECTION 4  
 



P&Z Minutes of the  
Regular Meeting  

December 1, 2014 
Page 2 of 7 

 

A request by Rene Rodriguez of LJA Engineering Inc., applicant, on behalf of Meritage 
Homes of Texas, LLC, owner, for approval of a Final Plat of Riverstone Ranch at 
Clear Creek Section 4, a 55 lot single-family residential subdivision, to wit: 
 
Legal Description: Being a subdivision of 34.113 acres of land situated in the T.J. 
Green Survey, Abstract 290, City of Pearland, Harris County, Texas also being a 
part of lots 30, 42, 43, 44, 45, 46, 47, 58, 59, 60, 61, and 62 of the Allison Richey Gulf 
Coast Home Company Subdivision, Section “G”, a subdivision of record in Volume 4, 
Page 48, Map Records of Harris County, Texas. 
 
General Location: Southeast of Riverstone Ranch Drive, south of the City of Houston 
ETJ border, Pearland, TX. 
 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION –MASTER PLAT OF SHADOW GROVE 
 
A request by Geoff Freeman of BGE Kerry R. Gilberts and Associates, applicant, on 
behalf of KB Homes, owner, for approval of a Master Plat of Shadow Grove, a 377 
lot single-family residential subdivision. 
 
Legal Description: Being 124.7 acres of land located in the A.B. Langerman Survey, 
A-555, City of Pearland, Fort Bend County, Texas. 
 
General Location: The southern intersection of Broadway St. and Windward Bay Dr. 
 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – PRELIMINARY PLAT OF SHADOW 
GROVE SECTION 2 
 
A request by Geoff Freeman of BGE Kerry R. Gilberts and Associates, applicant, on 
behalf of KB Homes, owner, for approval of a Preliminary Plat of Shadow Grove 
Section 2, an 18 lot single-family residential subdivision. 
 
Legal Description: Being 10.4 acres of land located in the A.B. Langerman Survey, 
A-555, City of Pearland, Fort Bend County, Texas. 
 
General Location: The southern intersection of Broadway St. and Windward Bay Dr. 
 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – PRELIMINARY PLAT OF SHADOW 
GROVE SECTION 3 
 
A request by Geoff Freeman of BGE Kerry R. Gilberts and Associates, applicant, on 
behalf of KB Homes, owner, for approval of a Preliminary Plat of Shadow Grove 
Section 3, a 41 lot single-family residential subdivision. 
 
Legal Description: Being 13.0 acres of land located in the A.B. Langerman Survey, 
A-555, City of Pearland, Fort Bend County, Texas. 
 



P&Z Minutes of the  
Regular Meeting  

December 1, 2014 
Page 3 of 7 

 

General Location: The southern intersection of Broadway St. and Windward Bay Dr. 
 
MATTERS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – PRELIMINARY PLAT OF OAKSHIRE 
SECTION 1 
 
A request by Rene Rodriguez of LJA Engineering Inc., applicant; on behalf of D.R. 
Horton – Texas, Ltd., owner; for approval of a Preliminary Plat of Oakshire Section 1, a 
40 lot single-family residential subdivision, to wit: 
 
Legal Description: Being 11.933 acres of land located in the W.D.C. Hall League, 
Abstract 70, Brazoria County, Texas, more particularly being a portion of Lot 3 and Lot 
4 of the George W. Jenkins Subdivision, a subdivision of record in Volume 79, Page 
616 of the Brazoria County Deed Records (B.C.D.R.), also being the residue of a 7.5 
acre tract (described as the Southwest ¾ of Lot 3) of which an undivided one-half 
interest was conveyed to Kim Freeman by instrument of record in File Number 99-
010744 of the Brazoria County Official Records (B.C.O.R.) and an un-divided ¼ 
interest, each, was to Kim Freeman and Kathy Jan Freeman, by instrument of record 
in File number 96-044065 of said B.C.O.R., and the residue of a 5 acre tract 
(described as southwest ½ of Lot 4) of which an undivided one-half interest was 
conveyed to Kathy Freeman, by instrument of record in File number 99- 0010744, of 
said B.C.O.R. and an undivided one fourth interest, each, was conveyed to Kim 
Freeman and Kathy Jan Freeman by instrument of record in File Number 96-044065, of 
said B.C.O.R., and; 
Being 2.387 acres of land located in the W.D.C. Hall League, Abstract 70, Brazoria 
County, Texas, more particularly being a portion of Lot 3 of the George W. 
Jenkins Subdivision, a subdivision of record in Volume 79, Page 616 of the Brazoria 
County Deed Records (B.C.P.R.), and being the residue of a 2.5 acre tract (described 
as the Northeast ¼ of Lot 3) conveyed to Kathy Freeman by instrument of record in 
Volume 1009, Page 57 of said B.C.D.R. 
 
General Location: Northeast corner of Dixie Farm Road and Tall Oak Drive, Pearland, 
TX. 
 
Senior Planner Ian Clowes read the staff report stating staff recommended approval. 
The proposed subdivision is the first section of the approved Dixie Farm and Tall Oak 
(Oakshire) Cluster Development Plan. 
 
Vice Chairperson Daniel Tunstall inquired about the reference in the UDC Chapter 2, 
Section 3.2.14.2 (f) that referred to “additional depth shall be required by the P&Z 
Commission when a residential area backs up to a gas pipeline,” and was concerned 
why this was on the Consent Agenda. 
 
Senior Planner Ian Clowes stated that it is at the P&Z Commissions discretion to 
request changes to the plat; however, the applicant was proposing 130 feet to160 feet 



P&Z Minutes of the  
Regular Meeting  

December 1, 2014 
Page 4 of 7 

 

lot depths, while placing an adequate amount of space between the pipeline and the 
homes.  
 
Both Alan Mueller of Gromax  and Warren Escovy of LJA Engineering, spoke briefly 
with regards to the pipeline and distance. 
 
The vote was 6-0.  The Preliminary Plat of Oakshire Section 1 was approved. 
 
OLD BUSINESS – NONE (ITEMS POSTPONED TO JANUARY 30, 2015) 
 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
APPLICATION NO. 2014-09 
A request of BGE Kerry R. Gilbert & Associates, applicant; on behalf of George 
Fishman, owner; for approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow for a 
Nursing/Convalescent Home within the Business Park – 288 (BP-288) zoning district, 
on approximately 9.4 acres of land, to wit: 
 
Legal Description: Being a 9.4083 tract of land located in the H.T. & B.R.R. Company 
Survey, Abstract 300, Brazoria County Texas; said 9.4083 acre tract being all of a 
called 3.39 acre tract of land recorded in the name of George D. and Mary 
Fishman in Clerk’s File Number 2005061002 of the Official Records of Brazoria 
County (O.R.B.C.) Texas, the remainder of a called 3.3 acre tract of land (North 
3.3 acres) recorded in the name of George D. and Mary Fishman in Clerk’s File 
Number 97-015077 of  the O.R.B.C. and the remainder of a called 3.3 acre tract of 
land (South 3.3 acres) recorded in the name of George D. and Mary Fishman in 
Clerk’s File Number 97-010496 of the O.R.B.C. 
 
General Location: West side of Business Center Drive, south of Pearland Town 
Center, Pearland, TX 
 
Postponed until January 30, 2015. 
 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – PLANNING AND ZONING 
VARIANCE 2014-05 
 
A request by Luther Daly of Costello, Inc., applicant; on behalf of George and Mary 
Fishman, owner; for approval of a Planning and Zoning Variance to allow for a flag 
lot within the existing Business Park 288 (BP-288) zoning district on 9.4083 acres of 
land, to wit: 
 
Legal Description: A subdivision of 9.4083 acres of land located in the H.T.& 
B.R.R. Company Survey, Abstract 300, Brazoria County, Texas. 
 
General Location: Located on the west side of Business Center Drive, south of 
Pearland Town Center. 
 



P&Z Minutes of the  
Regular Meeting  

December 1, 2014 
Page 5 of 7 

 

Postponed until January 30, 2015. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – REPLAT OF SHADOW CREEK RANCH SF-57 
 
A request by Rene Rodriguez, from LJA, applicant, on behalf of 741 SCR, LTD, 
owner, for approval of a Final Replat of Shadow Creek Ranch - SF 57, a 94 lot 
residential subdivision on 23,470 acres of land, to wit: 
 
Legal Description: A subdivision of 23.470 acres of land situated in the F. Hooper 
Survey, Abstract 198 and the H.T.& B.R.R. Co. Survey, Section 83, Abstract 761, 
City of Pearland, Fort Bend County, Texas, same being a Partial Replat of 
Shadow Creek Ranch SF-57, a subdivision recorded in Plat No. 20060296, Plat 
Records of Fort Bend County, Texas. 
 
General Location: Located at the northeast corner of Windward Bay Drive and 
Broadway Street. 
 
Chairperson Henry Fuertes opened the public hearing for the Replat of Shadow Creek 
Ranch SF-57 at 7:52 p.m. 
 
Senior Planner Ian Clowes read the staff report stating staff recommended approval of 
the replat.  The Final Plat was approved in November 2006 for 106 single family lots.  
The replat proposed a slight change in the road layout and addressed an additional 
access point on Windward Bay Drive and reduces the total lot count from 106 to 94 total 
lots. 
 
The applicant was present but did not speak. 
 
There was no discussion among the Commission / Staff. 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes adjourned the public hearing for Shadow Creek Ranch 
SF-57 at 7:54 p.m. 
 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – REPLAT OF SHADOW CREEK 
RANCH SF-57 
 
A request by Rene Rodriguez, from LJA, applicant, on behalf of 741 SCR, LTD, 
owner, for approval of a Final Replat of Shadow Creek Ranch - SF 57, a 94 lot 
residential subdivision on 23,470 acres of land, to wit: 
 
Legal Description: A subdivision of 23.470 acres of land situated in the F. Hooper 
Survey, Abstract 198 and the H.T.& B.R.R. Co. Survey, Section 83, Abstract 761, 
City of Pearland, Fort Bend County, Texas, same being a Partial Replat of 
Shadow Creek Ranch SF-57, a subdivision recorded in Plat No. 20060296, Plat 
Records of Fort Bend County, Texas. 



P&Z Minutes of the  
Regular Meeting  

December 1, 2014 
Page 6 of 7 

 

 
General Location: Located at the northeast corner of Windward Bay Drive and 
Broadway Street. 
 
Commissioner Derrick Reed made the motion to approved, and Commissioner Mary 
Starr seconded the motion. 
 
There was no discussion among the Commission / Staff / Applicant. 
 
The vote was 6-0.  The Replat of Shadow Creek Ranch SF-57 was approved. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – REPLAT OF SHADOW CREEK RANCH SF-58 
 
A request by Rene Rodriguez, from LJA, applicant; on behalf of 741 SCR, LTD, 
owner; for approval of a Final Replat of Shadow Creek Ranch - SF 58, a 54 lot 
residential subdivision located on 12.975 acres of land, to wit: 
 
Legal Description: A subdivision of 12.975 acres of land situated in the H.T. 
& B.R.R. Company Survey, Section 83, Abstract 761, City of Pearland, Fort Bend 
County, Texas, same being a Partial Replat of Shadow Creek Ranch SF-58, a 
subdivision recorded in Plat No. 20060297, Plat Records of Fort Bend County, 
Texas. 
 
General Location: Located on the south side of Windward Bay Drive north of Shadow 
Ridge. 
 
Chairperson Henry Fuertes opened the public hearing for the Replat of Shadow Creek 
Ranch SF-58 at 7:54 p.m. 
 
Senior Planner Ian Clowes read the staff report stating staff recommended approval of 
the replat.  The Final Plat was approved in November 2006 for 59 single family lots.  The 
replat proposes a slight change in the road layout and reduces the total lot count from 
59 to 54 total lots. 
 
The applicant was present but did not speak. 
 
There was no discussion among the Commission / Staff. 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes adjourned the public hearing for Shadow Creek Ranch 
SF-58 at 7:57 p.m. 
 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – REPLAT OF SHADOW CREEK 
RANCH SF-58 
 
A request by Rene Rodriguez, from LJA, applicant; on behalf of 741 SCR, LTD, 
owner; for approval of a Final Replat of Shadow Creek Ranch - SF 58, a 54 lot 
residential subdivision located on 12.975 acres of land, to wit: 



P&Z Minutes of the  
Regular Meeting  

December 1, 2014 
Page 7 of 7 

 

 
Legal Description: A subdivision of 12.975 acres of land situated in the H.T. 
& B.R.R. Company Survey, Section 83, Abstract 761, City of Pearland, Fort Bend 
County, Texas, same being a Partial Replat of Shadow Creek Ranch SF-58, a 
subdivision recorded in Plat No. 20060297, Plat Records of Fort Bend County, 
Texas. 
 
General Location: Located on the south side of Windward Bay Drive north of Shadow 
Ridge. 
 
Commissioner Mary Starr made a motion to approve, and Vice-Chairperson Daniel 
Tunstall seconded the motion. 
 
Chairperson Henry Fuertes inquired about how much had changed due to the city’s 
regulation or lot size request. 
 
Mr. Warren Escovy, LJA Engineering stated it was mainly a request for wider lots. 
 
The vote was 6-0.  The Replat of Shadow Creek Ranch SF-58 was approved. 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

1. Commissioners Activity Report – nothing reported 
2. Comprehensive Plan Update – Director Lata Krishnarao stated staff was 

still working with the consultant and trying to finalize the amendment to the 
contract. 

3. Zoning Update- Director Lata Krishnarao stated the Kroger site at 
Pearland Parkway and Barry Rose Road went to City Council for a first 
reading and was approved.  Staff is also working with the applicant for the 
nursing home site; and the rezoning of the land next to the church on 
Broadway near Southern Trails, that P&Z recommended for denial, was 
also denied by City Council. 

4. Next JPH/P&Z Meeting, December 15, 2014 – Joint Public Hearing 
and Regular Meeting – Director Lata Krishnarao stated there would be two 
joint public hearings and one joint workshop. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes adjourned the P&Z Regular meeting at 8:03 p.m. 
These minutes were respectfully submitted by: 
 
  ________________________________ 
  Judy Brown, Office Supervisor 
 
  
Minutes approved as submitted on this 15th day of December, 2014 A.D. 
 



P&Z Minutes of the  
Regular Meeting  

December 1, 2014 
Page 8 of 7 

 

   
________________________________ 

                                                        Henry Fuertes, Chairperson 



 

 

III. Old Business 
 

 



 

 

A. Conditional Use Permit Application 

No. 2014-09 

A request of BGE Kerry R. Gilbert & Associates, applicant; on 

behalf of George Fishman, owner; for approval of a Conditional 

Use Permit to allow for a Nursing/Convalescent Home within 

the Business Park – 288 (BP-288) zoning district, on 

approximately 9.4 acres of land 



   
City of Pearland 

   
 

P&Z AGENDA REQUEST  
 
 

TO:    Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
REQUESTOR:   Kerry R. Gilbert & Associates 
 
DATE:    12/15/2014 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: Conditional Use Permit Application Number CUP 2014-09 

 
 

� Old Business      �    New Business  �   Discussion Item �   Workshop 
 

 
Summary:  A request of BGE Kerry R. Gilbert & Associates, applicant; on behalf of 
George Fishman, owner; for approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow for a 
Nursing/Convalescent Home within the Business Park – 288 (BP-288) zoning district, on 
approximately 9.4 acres of land; Pearland, Texas. 
 
The item was originally postponed from the October 20, 2014 regular meeting of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission.  The Commission had the following concerns.  The 
applicant’s response/how the Commission’s concerns were addressed follows in red, 
italicized font: 

 
1. The Planning and Zoning Commission (The Commission) recommended a wet 

detention pond with amenities.  The Commission advised that the detention pond does 
not have to mirror the detention proposed to the south for Costco.  The Commission 
also requested a better understanding of the reason that the detention had to be 
dedicated to Brazoria County District No. 4.  

 The original site plan illustrated an 8-foot masonry screening wall along the eastern 
boundary of the detention area and a 30-foot wide landscape buffer between the 
detention area and the first row of parking spaces along the western most boundary of 
the site.  The 30-foot landscape buffer included ground cover only.  

 
 The revised site plan depicts a 30-foot buffer which includes 56 evergreen shrubs and 
12 ornamental shade trees along the east side of the proposed masonry screening wall, 

City of Pearland 
3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 

Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 



for a continuous row of shrubs/trees to add to the proposed landscape screening buffer 
for the amenitized detention area. Also included within the 30-foot landscape buffer are 
3 benches and a 4-foot concrete sidewalk, with enhanced landscaping including 
ornamental shade trees, which are in addition to previously mentioned shrubs/trees 
along the eastern boundary of the detention area.  

 
 The applicant provided a letter from Costello Engineering and Surveying regarding the 
deviation from a wet detention pond (See Attachment). 

 
2. The Commission recommended sidewalks and street trees along both sides of the pole 

(access easement) of the proposed flag lot, in keeping with the “Complete Streets” 
concept.   
 
The applicant has incorporated 4- foot sidewalks along the north and south sides of the 
pole portion (access easement) of the flag lot. Sidewalks along the perimeter of 
buildings have been increased to 5 feet.  The site plan depicts pedestrian connectivity 
throughout the entire site.  Sidewalks currently exist along Business Center Drive. 
  
The number of trees along the pole portion of the proposed flag lot has increased 
substantially from the original site plan, from 6 ornamental trees along the northern 
boundary of the pole and 5 shade trees along the southern boundary of the pole; to 11 
ornamental trees and 8 shade trees, along the northern boundary of the pole; and 5 
shade trees and 5 shade trees. 
 
The applicant has also incorporated stamped concrete decorative paving along the 
access easement in 2 areas and throughout the site. 
 

3. Discussion ensued regarding screening and connectivity to the south (Costco).  The site 
plan originally submitted did not show screening and how the site relates to the property 
to the south regarding connectivity and screening.  The Commission asked for 
additional landscaping along the southern boundary of the site. 

 In addition to a 6-foot landscape buffer along the southern boundary of the site, which 
includes enhanced landscaping with 25 evergreen shrubs, 8 ornamental trees, and 4 
shade trees; the site plan depicts 3 benches and 4-foot concrete sidewalks for 
pedestrian connectivity along the southern boundary of the site.  

   
4. The Commission requested renderings/elevations of the building on all sides.  The 

Commission also requested a “better” site plan, as the site plan submitted was fuzzy 
and did not give a “feel for the development.” 

 
The applicant has submitted an updated site plan, which depicts enhanced landscaping, 
including evergreen and deciduous shrubs, groundcover, perennials, and seasonal 
color; and various amenities including pedestrian connectivity throughout the site; 
benches with wheelchair spaces; a water fountain; and stamped concrete decorative 
paving throughout the site.  

City of Pearland 
3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 

Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 



Building elevations have been provided depicted all sides of the building.  Renderings of 
similar projects that were constructed with similar materials and styles were submitted 
also. The elevations and renderings give a better understanding of the nature and 
aesthetic quality of the proposed development.   

 
5. The Commission recommended that the address all staff concerns and incorporate 

them into the development.  Staff recommended conditions follow: 
 

a) In addition to the proposed screening wall, staff recommends a vegetative 
screen, on the east side of the proposed screening wall (within the proposed 30-
foot buffer) to provide a visual screen from the proposed wall.  The vegetative 
screen shall incorporate plantings and shrubs. Shrubs shall be placed a minimum 
of 3 feet on center. 
The above condition has been met.  See Planning and Zoning Commission 
recommended conditions above (#2). 

b) The applicant is seeking approval of a flag lot from the Planning and Zoning 
Commission. Staff’s recommended conditions for the proposed flag lot include 
the following: 

i. The access easement located within the pole portion of the subject  parcel 
shall be treated as City Street, requiring 1 caliper inch of tree for every 15 
feet of frontage on either side of the easement, with each tree having a 
minimum of 2 caliper inches. 
A total of 20 caliper inches are provided in total along both sides of the 
access easement within the pole portion of the proposed flag lot. 
 

ii. Sidewalks shall be required along both sides of the access easement 
located within the pole portion of the subject parcel and connect to  both 
Business Center Drive, and to planned walkways within the development. 

Four foot sidewalks are provided along the majority of both sides of the 
access easement.  

Supporting Documents: 
• Letter from Costello Engineering & Surveying Regarding Deviation from Wet 

Detention 
• Revised Site Plan 
• Building Elevations and Renderings, Including Courtyard Area 
• Amenity Examples 
• 10.20.14 JPH Packet 

 

 
 
 

 

City of Pearland 
3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 

Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 



 

October 31, 2014 
 
Ms. Lata Krishnarao 
Community Development Department 
City of Pearland 
3523 Liberty Drive 
Pearland, Texas 77581 
 
Re: Detention Pond Design Response for CUP submittal 
 For Nursing Home on Business Center Drive 
 CI Job No. 2014213-01 

Dear Ms. Krishnarao: 

 This letter is in response to the Planning & Zoning Boards (P&Z) question concerning the deviation 
from a wet detention pond design for the 9.408 acre Nursing Home on Business Center Drive 
development.  The current plan proposes to expand an existing Brazoria County Drainage District No. 4 
(DD4) channel to accommodate the required detention volume to allow full development of the 9.408 
acre site.  The existing channel was expanded by the City of Pearland in 2009 to provide detention for 
the roadway improvements to Business Center Drive, as described in the report entitled “Business Center 
Drive Extension, Hydrologic and Hydraulic Study,” dated February 2009, prepared by Freese and Nichols, 
Inc..  That project redirected the drainage for the areas west of Business Center Drive, which includes 
this development, to the channel and planned for future development to discharge into the channel with 
mitigating detention volume.  

 As part of the DD4 review process a Preliminary Drainage Plan for the development was prepared 
and submitted to the district engineer.  Subsequently, DD4 has provided comments which are attached 
along with Costello Inc.’s (CI) response letters.  The final comments are being addressed and it is 
anticipated that the plan will be approved at the next district board meeting.   

 In preliminary discussion with DD4 to determine the development requirements, it was decided 
that the most reasonable means of providing detention would be as an expansion of the existing channel 
to mimic the recently completed channel expansion south of the tract directly south of the development.  
A 60-foot drainage easement owned by DD4 currently exist on the eastern edge of the development.  To 
receive DD4 approval to expand the channel, it is required that the detention facility be dedicated in fee 
as stated in the August 21, 2014 email from the district engineer Mr. Jarrod Aden.  The current DD4 
district policy is that they will not own or maintain detention facilities that include an amenity portion as 
stated in Appendix A , Section 3.4.1.2 of the criteria manual.  

 A preliminary design of a separate wet bottom pond indicates that an additional 1 acre of land 
will be required to achieve the required detention volume.  This will cause a loss of not only 1 acre of 
land from the developer, but also be a loss of 1 acre of taxable commercial property.  The wet pond 
would only provide 0.8 acres of surface area that is approximately 7.5-feet below the finished natural 
ground.  This will greatly limit the ability to view the wet area minimizing any amenity value of the pond.  
The pond location will not be viewable by any residential properties due to the buffer of the existing 
channel, and the location of the pond on the tract limits its amenity value for any of the on-site users.   



Ms. Lata Krishnarao 
October 31, 2014 
Page 2 

 In order to maintain a wet pond, a source of “make-up” water will need to be provided to keep 
the pond at its designed water level.  This would either have to be a groundwater well or connection to 
the City of Pearland municipal water system.  During dry years, the use of municipal water supplies to 
keep amenity ponds full have been met with great opposition from citizens otherwise required to limit 
such irrigation uses.  If the pond is not kept full, it can become difficult to maintain and operate.  

 If a separate wet pond is chosen, either a property owners association or some other agreement 
will have to be developed to provide private maintenance of the pond.  Generally, it has been 
experienced that small ponds of this type will have lapses in maintenance once the original developers 
have sold all of the property and are no longer involved.  Having the pond dedicated to DD4 would give 
the city increased assurance that the pond will receive continuing long-term maintenance.   

 In general, development practices desire to regionalize detention facilities in lieu of multiple on-
site detention ponds.  This allows a more efficient use of the available land and a more predicable control 
of flood discharges.  Regionalized detention places the constructed detention facilities under the 
jurisdiction of a regulatory agency (i.e. DD4) that will ensure proper maintenance and operation of the 
facilities.  The expansion of the DD4 channel will allow this particular watershed to continue to develop 
with a regionalized detention system under the jurisdiction of DD4.   

 We appreciate your time in considering this matter.  If you should have any further questions or 
comments, feel free to contact me at 713-783-7788 or by email at swilcox@costelloinc.com.   

 
 Sincerely, 
 Costello, Inc. 
  
 
 
 
 
 J. Stephen Wilcox, P.E., CFM 
 Project Engineer – Hydrology & Hydraulics 
 
Attachments:  
Preliminary Drainage Plan and DD4 Review Letters 
 
 
V:\Site_Development\Medical Resort of Pearland\Pearland P&Z detention response.docx 
 

mailto:swilcox@costelloinc.com


1

J. Stephen Wilcox, P.E., CFM

From: Jarrod Aden <jarrod@lentzengineering.net>

Sent: Thursday, August 21, 2014 7:46 AM

To: Stephen Wilcox

Cc: Mike Yost (my.bdd4@swbell.net); John Genaro

Subject: RE: DD4 A-124 Channel Expansion

Stephen – I have discussed your proposal with the District.  

 

We have no objection to your detention concept subject to the following: 

 

1)      Property (for pond, channel, and maintenance berm)  must be dedicated in fee to the District. 

2)      Owner must pay the required detention maintenance fee. 

3)      After the construction is complete, the District staff and Engineer must verify District standards have been met 

(construction final inspection).   

4)   The Board must accept the detention pond for maintenance at their regularly scheduled meeting after all other 

items have been completed. 

 

Ultimately, it is the Board’s decision as to whether or not the pond will be accepted for maintenance. 

 

Feel free to call me with any questions. 

 

Jarrod D. Aden, P.E., C.F.M. 

President 

Lentz Engineering, LLC 

5909 West Loop South, Suite 200 

Bellaire, Texas 77401 

Office – 713-839-8900 

Direct phone – 713-255-6160 

Fax - 713-839-9020 

Cell – 832-715-8424 

jarrod@lentzengineering.net 

www.lentzengineering.net 

 

 
 

 
 

From: Stephen Wilcox [mailto:swilcox@coseng.com]  

Sent: Tuesday, August 19, 2014 11:36 AM 



2

To: Jarrod Aden 

Subject: DD4 A-124 Channel Expansion 

 

Jarrod, 

 

Here is an aerial showing the site boundaries and location that we talked about on the phone. The aerial does not show 

the recent channel expansion done on the Moody Tract. Feel free to call me with any questions. 

 

Respectfully, 

 
J. Stephen Wilcox, P.E., CFM 

Project Engineer 

Hydrology & Hydraulics Department 
 

Costello, Inc | Office: (713) 783-7788 | Mobile: (832) 443-9977 

 







 

 
October 15, 2014 

 
 
Mr. Jarrod Aden, P.E., C.F.M. 
Lentz Engineering, L.C. 
c/o Brazoria County Drainage District No. 4  
5909 West Loop South, Suite 200  
Bellaire, Texas 77401  
 
RE:  Medical Resort of Pearland – Preliminary Drainage Plan, Response to Comments 
 Brazoria County Drainage District No. 4 & City of Pearland  
 CI Job Number: 2014231 Task 006 
 
Dear Mr. Aden, 

 We are providing you this letter in response to comments received on September 11, 2014 for 
the preliminary drainage plan for the 9.41 acre Medical Resort of Pearland development within Brazoria 
County Drainage District No. 4 (DD4).  The responses below address the comments provided in that 
letter. 

Comment 1: 
The required sheet size for the plans is 22" x 34". [Section 4.A, Page 12] 

 
The proposed drainage plan has been provided on a 22” x 34” sheet. 

 
Comment 2: 
Please include the Owner name, contact name, address, and phone number on the plans. 
[Section 4, A.2, Page 12] 
The owner name and contact information have been included on the drainage plan, and are 
as follows:  

 
Global XYZ Development, LLC 
Mr. John Griffin 
721 S. Highway 78 
Wylie, TX 75098 
(972) 303-8100 

 
Comment 3: 
Provide a location or vicinity map drawn to scale. [Section 4, A.5, Page 12] 

 
A vicinity map, including the site boundary, has been drawn to a scale of 1”:1200’ and is 
included on the proposed drainage plan. 
 
 

 



Mr. Jarrod Aden  
October 15, 2014 
Page 2 

Comment 4: 
Provide permission in writing from the adjacent property owner to connect to the adjacent 
detention pond. [Section 4, A.8, Page 12] 
 
A letter dated September 29, 2014 received from LJA engineering on behalf of Brazoria 
County MUD 34 which states no objection to the proposed drainage plan and detention 
pond expansion has been received and is included with this submittal. 

 
Comment 5: 
Provide drainage area divides for the project area, including off-site areas, with peak runoff 
rates for each inlet, structure, or drainage area. The drainage areas should be overlaid on the 
plan view of the site and not as a separate exhibit. Use City of Pearland / 
BDD # 4 storm sewer calculations. [Section 4, A.12, Page 13] 

 
Drainage areas have been included as shown on the proposed drainage plan. Peak flow 
rates for internal development drainage areas have been included on the drainage plan. 

 
Comment 6: 
Locate and dimension all existing and proposed drainage easements and fee strips. 
[Section 4, A.13, Page 13] 

 
All existing and proposed drainage easements have been notated and dimensioned on the 
proposed drainage plan sheet.  

 
Comment 7:  
Label the District channel as BDD # 4 Unit # A124-05-00. 

 
The district channel has been labeled on the drainage plan as BDD#4 Unit # A124-05-00. 

 
Comment 8: 
Your plans require a proposed drainage fee strip dedication to Brazoria Drainage District 
No. 4. Please be advised that you will need to furnish the District with an executed copy of the 
dedication agreement prior to receiving final drainage plan approval. Submit a signed and 
sealed metes and bounds description to this office so that the District Attorney can begin 
preparing the necessary documents. [Section 4, A.13, Page 13] 
 
The portion of the tract to be dedicated to the detention pond will be subdivided during the 
re-platting process. The detention pond parcel will then be transferred in fee to Brazoria 
County DD4 upon acceptance by the District. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Mr. Jarrod Aden  
October 15, 2014 
Page 3 

Comment 9:  
The "c" value for undeveloped property is 0.2. [Section 4, A.15, Page 13] 

 
The “c” value for the undeveloped existing condition has been changed to 0.2 and updated 
in the detailed detention calculations included on the proposed drainage plan. 

 
Comment 10: 
Provide detailed calculations for the detention provided. [Section 4, A.15, Page 13] 

 
Detailed calculations, including the proposed condition composite “c” value, time of 
concentration, rational peak flows, small watershed hydrographs, required detention 
volumes, and stage-area curves are included in tables on the proposed drainage plan. 
Comment 11: 
Show the limits of the floodway and the 100-year floodplain scaled from the current 
FIRM. Alternatively, provide a flood statement, which indicates that the tract lies entirely 
outside of the 100-year floodplain. [Section 4, A. 17, Page 13] 

 
The site is located in an Unshaded Zone X, based on FEMA FRIM panel 48039C0020H, 
dated June, 5, 1989. No portion of the site falls within the Special Flood Hazard Area, as 
stated on the proposed plan sheet, under General Notes, Item 2. 

  
Comment 12: 
Please be advised that you will be required to demonstrate that sheet flow from adjacent 
property is not affected by your proposed improvements. [Section 5, A.20, Page 20] 
 
Sheet flow from property located to the north currently drains to away from the site as 
illustrated by the existing contours shown in the proposed drainage plan. In addition, Areas 
located to the have been designed to drain to the existing detention pond as shown in the 
IDS plans. 

 
Comment 13: 
 Sheet flow into a detention facility must be done across a concrete lined section. [Section 
6, Page 82] 
Sheet flows will be collected in the western parking area and routed through storm inlets 
and pipes which will be sized for the 100-year event. As such, the proposed overflow swale 
included in the drainage plan will remain as a grass lined section.  

 
Comment 14: 
Extreme event overflow swales must have 6:1 side slopes and a minimum 6' bottom width and 
be lined with reinforced concrete as per the District details. 
An extreme event overflow swale is included on the proposed drainage plan sheet. This 
swale is 1 foot deep, with 6:1 side slopes, and a 6 foot bottom width. As discussed in 
comment 13 above, pipes sized for the 100 year event will carry sheets flows. 
 
 

 



Mr. Jarrod Aden  
October 15, 2014 
Page 4 

Comment 15: 
Provide back slope swales and interceptors as per District requirements. 

 
A proposed back slope swale and interceptor structure conforming to BCDD4 requirements 
has been included as shown on the proposed drainage plan sheet.  

 
Comment 16: 
Provide and dimension maintenance berms for the detention pond. [Section 3.4.1, Page 
60] 

 
The proposed pond layout includes a 25 foot maintenance berm as shown in cross section 
A-A on the proposed drainage plan.  
 

 

If you have any questions or require any additional information, please feel free to contact me at 713-
783-7788 or by email at swilcox@coseng.com.   

 
 Sincerely, 
 Costello, Inc. 
  
 
 
 
 
 J. Stephen Wilcox, P.E., CFM 
 Project Engineer – Hydrology & Hydraulics 
 
cc: Mr. John Griffin, Senior Care Excellence 
 
V:\Site_Development\Medical Resort of Pearland\Preliminary Drainage Plan\2014-09-09 Medical Resort of Pearland Preliminary Drainage Plan.docx 



I n 
EvatkEERItIG  

October 21, 2014 
	 Engineering Your Satisfaction 

Mr. J. Stephen Wilcox, P.E., C.F.M. 
Costello Engineering & Surveying 
9990 Richmond Avenue, Suite 450, North Building 
Houston, Texas 77042 
cc: swilcox@costelloinc.com  

RE: Pearland Medical Resort 
Preliminary Drainage Plan 
BDD 4 Ref ID: 140123 
LE-14004 

Dear Mr. Wilcox: 

On behalf of Brazoria Drainage District No. 4, we have reviewed the resubmittal of the 
Preliminary Drainage Plan as submitted for the above-mentioned project and offer the following 
comments. Brackets contain references to the Rules, Regulations, and Guidelines of Brazoria 
Drainage District # 4: 

1. The required sheet size for the plans is 22" x 34". [Section 4.A, Page 12] Size your 
border and trim the sheet to this size. 

2. Your plans require a proposed drainage fee strip dedication to Brazoria Drainage District 
No. 4. Please be advised that you will need to furnish the District with an executed copy 
of the dedication agreement prior to receiving final drainage plan approval. Submit a 
signed and sealed metes and bounds description to this office so that the District Attorney 
can begin preparing the necessary documents. [Section 4, A.13, Page 13] Please call this 
office to discuss your proposed approach. Your Final Drainage Plan cannot be approved 
until this fee strip has been given to the District. 

3. Please be advised that you will be required to demonstrate that sheet flow from adjacent 
property is not affected by your proposed improvements. [Section 5, A.20, Page 20] 
Your contours along the south side contradict the statement in your letter. A cross 
section showing the existing and proposed grades might clarify your intent. 

4. Sheet flow into a detention facility must be done across a concrete lined section. [Section 
6, Page 82] You cannot deviate from this requirement without an approved variance. 
Submit a request for variance in writing to the District. Contact our office with any 
questions. 

5. Extreme event overflow swales must have 6:1 side slopes and a minimum 6' bottom 
width and be lined with reinforced concrete as per the District details. You cannot 
deviate from this requirement without an approved variance. Submit a request for 
variance in writing to the District. Contact our office with any questions. 

5909 West Loop South • Suite 200 • Bellaire, Texas 77401 • Phone: (713) 839-8900 • Fax (713) 839-9020 • www.lentzengineerIng.net  

TBPE Registration No. F-1378  -  TBPLS  Firrn  No. 10143700 



Pearland Medical Resort 
Preliminary Drainage Plan 
BDD 4 Ref ID: 140123 
LE-14004 
October 21, 2014 
Page 2 

Please return three (3) complete sets of plans to this office approval. 

If you have any questions or require any further information, please do not hesitate to call. 

Sincerely, 
Lentz Engineering, LLC 

J od D. Aden, P.E., C.F.M. 
President 

cc: 	Mr. Mike Yost 
Ms. Kim Woodall 
Mr. John Genaro 
Mr. Richard Mancilla, P.E., C.F.M. 
Mr. Alfred E. Lentz, P.E., R.P.L.S. 
Mr. Michael Shannon, P.E. 



SHEET:

SHEET TITLE:

DATE:

REVISIONS:

C 2014 PI ARCHITECTS, INC. 

tcrpi a citeh s

NOT FOR BIDDING, PERMIT,
OR CONSTRUCTION

PURPOSES

PROJECT NUMBER:

CONDITIONAL
USE 
SITEPLAN

L1

14010

10/31/14

DRAWINGS
PRELIMINARY

PE
A

RL
A

N
D

, T
EX

A
S 

M
ED

IC
A

L 
CA

M
PU

S
PE

A
RL

A
N

D

SA

ET

S
TA 12

OF

3 2
ET

X

BR
YA

N  C.  WARN
E

0 15 30 601

DEVELOPMENT SITE PLAN Scale 1" = 30'-0"

THIS DRAWING, AS AN INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE, IS AND SHALL REMAIN THE

PROPERTY OF PI ARCHITECTS AND SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED, PUBLISHED

OR USED IN ANY WAY WITHOUT THE PERMISSION OF PI ARCHITECTS

SITE DATA

GENERAL INFORMATION

Site Zoning: BP 288 / Business Center PD

Proposed Use: Skilled Nursing and Medical Office

LOT INFORMATION

Parcel A Parcel B Parcel C

Skilled Nursing

Medical Office Medical Office

Req

Prov

Req

Prov

Req

Prov

Front Setback 25ft 38ft 25ft 25ft 25ft 25ft

Rear Setback 20ft 99ft 20ft 20ft 20ft 20ft

Side Setback 20ft 47ft 20ft 20ft 20ft 20ft

Width 150ft 150ft 105ft 295ft

Flag

150ft 495ft

Pole 50ft 50ft

Depth

200ft 300ft 200ft 300ft

Flag

200ft 351ft

Pole 200ft 300ft

Area 1ac 4.34ac 1ac 1.03ac 1ac 2.03ac

PARKING

Parcel A Parcel B Parcel C

Skilled Nursing

Medical Office Medical Office

Req

Prov

Req

Prov

Req

Prov

(1)sp per (2) beds

52 90

(1)sp per (300)sf

41 43 79 82

LANDSCAPE

Parcel A Parcel B Parcel C

Skilled Nursing

Medical Office Medical Office

Req
Prov

Req
Prov

Req
Prov

Street Trees,

1" per (15)lf

(17) (17) (5) (5) (10) (10)

Shade 2"

(7) (2) (5)

Ornamental 2"

(10) (3) (5)

Esmt Trees,

1" per (15)lf

(20) (20)

Shade2"

(10)

Ornamental 2"

(10)

Parking Trees

1" per (5) sp

(9) (9) (5) (5) (9) (9)

Shade 2"

(9) (3) (5)

Ornamental 2"

(2) (4)

Screening (0) (21)

Ornamental 2"

(0) (21)

Shrubs

(√) (√)

Land. Area
(41,426)sf (54,509)sf (6,750)sf (17,810)sf (13,297)sf (23,251)sf

15% Site Area

1   November 12, 2014

2   December 01, 2014



Not for regulatory
approval, permitting, or

construction

Architect / Registration:

Date:
GREGORY P. HUNTEMAN  #11334
10/28/2014

A4.1

BUILDING
ELEVATIONS

DATE:

PROJECT NUMBER:

SHEET TITLE:

14010

9/19/14

SHEET:

REVISIONS:

PRELIMINARY
DRAWINGS

ISSUE:

©2014  PI ARCHITECTS, INC.

PE
A

R
LA

N
D

M
ED

IC
A

L 
C

A
M

PU
S

( 5 1 2 )  2 3 1 - 1 9 1 0

w w  w  . p  i  a  r  c  h  . c  o  m

architecture + master planning
interiors + landscape architecture

F :

3500 Jefferson St,
A u s t i n ,   T X

pi architects
Suite 303
7 8 7 3 1

P :
( 5 1 2 )  2 3 1 - 1 9 5 0

P
E

A
R

LA
N

D
, T

E
X

A
S

1

9
13

2

1

9
13

1 9 19

88

6
6

+12'-0"
TOP OF PLATE

+12'-0"
TOP OF PLATE

2 22

9'-
0" 11

'-0
"

9'-
0" 11

'-0
"

A2
A5.3

A2
A5.3

A1
A5.2

W1 W1 W1 W1 W1 W1 W1 W1 W1 W1 W1 W1

W10W10

CL CL

+11'-0"
TOP OF PLATE

+29'-5"
TOP OF PLATE

+14'-0"
TOP OF PLATE

6

1

1

2

9

10

11
12

5

12

7

16

10 12

14

1515

15

6'-
9"

A5
A5.7

D5
A5.7

W4W8W8W8

W7

W13

W4

W11

CL

HARDIE FASCIA  BOARD, TYP.

NATURAL CUT STONE VENEER

NATURAL CUT STONE WAINSCOT

CAST STONE WATER TABLE, SLOPED, TYP

AWNING, TYP.

CONCRETE ROOF TILES

WALL SCONCE, REF: ELECT.

PTAC, TYP. FACTORY FINISH TO MATCH STONE

PREMANUFACTURED PROFILE, TYP. REF: SHEET A5.2

WINDOW SHUTTERS, TYP. PAINTED

PORTE COCHERE, REF: A5.6

STUCCO FINISH, TYP.

STUCCO FINISH OVER 2X FURRING

STUCCO HEADER, TYP.

MASONRY SILL, TYP.

2

1

9
13

2 8

1 9

6

2

19

7 7

+12'-0"
TOP OF PLATE

+12'-0"
TOP OF PLATE

12

8

14

11
'-0

"

9'-
0"

6'-
9" 8'-

0"9'-
6"

A2
A5.3

A1
A5.2

W1 W1 W1 W1 W1 W1 W1

W10

CL

CL

1

9
13

2 8

1 9

6 6

1 9

8

+12'-0"
TOP OF PLATE

2

9'-
0" 11

'-0
"

A1
A5.2

A2
A5.3

W1 W1 W1 W1 W1 W1 W1 W1 W1 W1 W1 W1

W10

CL

1

2

6

9

1

2

9

82

7

2

13

1
9

7
+11'-0"

TOP OF PLATE

+13'-0"
TOP OF PLATE +12'-0"

TOP OF PLATE
+12'-0"

TOP OF PLATE
77

8

12

14

9'-
0"11

'-0
"

8'-
0"9'-

6"

6'-
9"

6'-
9"

8'-
2"

9 1
/2"

5'-0"

8'-
11

 1/
2"

A2
A5.3

A1
A5.2

W1W1W1W1W1W1W4
W9W9W4

W10
W10

CL

CL

CL

1

9
13

2 8

7

1 9

6

2

7

+12'-0"
TOP OF PLATE

+12'-0"
TOP OF PLATE +11'-0"

TOP OF PLATE

2

12
14

8

9'-
0" 11

'-0
"

6'-
9"8'-

0"9'-
6"

A2
A5.3

A1
A5.2

W1 W1W1W1 W1 W1

W10

CL
CL

1

9
13

2 8

1 9

6

2

19

1

9

7 7

+12'-0"
TOP OF PLATE

+12'-0"
TOP OF PLATE

28 12

14

9'-
0" 11

'-0
"

9'-
6"

6'-
9" 8'-

0"

A1
A5.2

A2
A5.3

W1 W1 W1 W1 W1 W1 W1

W10

CL

CL

12
2 8

19 1 9
7

1

9

7

+12'-0"
TOP OF PLATE

14

2

6'-
9"8'-

0" 9'-
6"

A1
A5.2

W1 W1 W1

NOTE: ALL ROOFTOP MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT WILL BE SCREENED
FROM VIEW WITHIN RECESSED MECHANICAL TROUGH AREA.

CL

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

HARDIE FASCIA  BOARD, TYP.

NATURAL CUT STONE VENEER

NATURAL CUT STONE WAINSCOT

CAST STONE WATER TABLE, SLOPED, TYP

AWNING, TYP.

CONCRETE ROOF TILES

WALL SCONCE, REF: ELECT.

PTAC, TYP. FACTORY FINISH TO MATCH STONE

PREMANUFACTURED PROFILE, TYP. REF: SHEET A5.2

WINDOW SHUTTERS, TYP. PAINTED

PORTE COCHERE, REF: A5.6

STUCCO FINISH, TYP.

STUCCO FINISH OVER 2X FURRING

STUCCO HEADER, TYP.

MASONRY SILL, TYP.

1.  TOP PLATE 9'-0", UNO.

2.  RETURN MASONRY AT ALL WINDOWS AND DOORS
     WHERE MASONRY IS PRESENT

 1
06/23/14
ASI-05

SCALE: 1/8"   =    1'-0"B1 SOUTH ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/8"   =    1'-0"E1 WEST ELEVATION 1 OF 3

SCALE: 1/8"   =    1'-0"D3 EAST ELEVATION 1 OF 3

SCALE: 1/8"   =    1'-0"A1 NORTH ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/8"   =    1'-0"E3 WEST ELEVATION 2 OF 3

SCALE: 1/8"   =    1'-0"D1 WEST ELEVATION 3 OF 3

SCALE: 1/8"   =    1'-0"C3 EAST ELEVATION 3 OF 3
SCALE: 1/8"   =    1'-0"C1 EAST ELEVATION 2 OF 3

KEYED NOTES

GENERAL NOTES





Photos and Illustrations of
 Similar  Projects

Courtyard Area

Front Facade 

Front Elevation



Illustrations of
Potential Amenities

BENCHES

FOUNTAIN/ WATER FEATURE



 
 

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING 
THE CITY COUNCIL CITY AND THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF 

THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, 
MONDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2014, AT 6:30 P.M. 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS - CITY HALL-3519 LIBERTY DRIVE 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. PURPOSE OF HEARING 

 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) Application No. CUP 2014-09 
 
A request of BGE Kerry R. Gilbert & Associates, applicant; on behalf of George 
Fishman, owner; for approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow for a 
Nursing/Convalescent Home within the Business Park – 288 (BP-288) zoning 
district, on approximately 9.4 acres of land, to wit: 
 
Legal Description:  Being a 9.4083 tract of land located in the H.T. & B.R.R. 
Company Survey, Abstract 300, Brazoria County Texas; said 9.4083 acre tract 
being all of a called 3.39 acre tract of land recorded in the name of George D. and 
Mary Fishman in Clerk’s File Number 2005061002 of the Official Records of 
Brazoria County (O.R.B.C.) Texas, the remainder of a called 3.3 acre tract of land 
(North 3.3 acres) recorded in the name of George D. and Mary Fishman in Clerk’s 
File Number 97-015077 of the O.R.B.C. and the remainder of a called 3.3 acre 
tract of land (South 3.3 acres) recorded in the name of George D. and Mary 
Fishman in Clerk’s File Number 97-010496 of the O.R.B.C. 
 
General Location:  West side of Business Center Drive, south of Pearland Town 
Center, Pearland, TX 
 

III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY 
 
A. STAFF REPORT 
B. APPLICANT PRESENTATION 
C. STAFF WRAP UP 

 
IV. PERSONS WISHING TO SPEAK FOR OR AGAINST THE PROPOSED 

REQUEST 
 
V. COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION/STAFF DISCUSSION 
 
VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Page 1 of 2 – 10/20/2014    
 



This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, please call 
Young Lorfing, City Secretary, at 281-652-1655 prior to the meeting so that 
appropriate arrangements can be made. 

 



 

 

Memo 
To:  City Council and Planning and Zoning Commission 

From:  Planning Department 

Date:  October 20, 2014 
 
Re: Conditional Use Permit Application Number 2014-09 

A request of BGE Kerry R. Gilbert & Associates, applicant; on     
behalf of George Fishman, owner; for approval of a Conditional      
Use Permit to allow for a Nursing/Convalescent Home within the      
Business Park – 288 (BP-288) zoning district, on approximately      
9.4 acres of land located on West side of Business Center Drive, 
and south of Pearland Town Center., 

Proposal 

The parent tract includes a total of 9.4 acres of land, of which the applicant is proposing 
to construct a Nursing/Convalescent Home on approximately 4.3 acres. The facility; the 
Medical Resort will include 54,000 square feet and a host of amenities for patients, 
including restaurant services, private and dual rooms, a gym and an outdoor therapy 
area. 

Public Notification/Comment 

Staff sent public notices, comment forms and a vicinity map to the applicant, owner of 
the property and to property owners within 200 feet of the site.  Additionally, a legal 
notice of public hearing was published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign 
was placed on the property by the applicant. 

As of the date of this writing, staff has not received any returned notices from property 
owners within 200 feet of the site in favor or in opposition to the request. 

Recommendation  

Staff recommends approval of the CUP 2014-09 to allow for a Nursing/Convalescent 
Home on the approximately 4.3 acre site, following reasons: 

1. The proposed use will be in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan, with 
approval of the CUP, and meets the intent of the Business Park Future Land Use 
designation.  The location of the property lends itself for a mix of non-residential 

 

1 | P a g e  

 



 

uses, as indicated by the Comprehensive Plan, and will continue to provide for a 
mix of uses that are planned or developed for the area.   

2. There should be no major impacts to the single family residential subdivision to 
the west, as it will be separated from the proposed development via a 176-foot 
wide detention pond and a 60-foot drainage easement, for a total of 236-foot 
separation, which will provide a sufficient buffer between the non-residential use 
and the existing single family subdivision. 

3. Approval of the CUP will not have a negative impact on the existing character of 
the neighborhood. The subject property is surrounded by commercial uses 
and/or zoning districts on three sides with a single family subdivision to the west, 
with an over 200 foot buffer.   

4. The undeveloped site will conform to all requirements and policies of the UDC, 
with the exception of the amenitized detention facility located along the western-
most boundary.  However, a screening wall is proposed and staff recommends a 
tree-line with shrubs along the screening wall.  All other requirements of the UDC 
will ensure an aesthetically appealing development, including compliance with 
screening/fencing, lighting, height, buffering, landscaping and parking 
requirements.  

Conditions of Approval 

1. In addition to the proposed screening wall, staff recommends a vegetative 
screen, on the east side of the proposed screening wall (within the proposed 30-
foot buffer) to provide a visual screen from the proposed wall.  The vegetative 
screen shall incorporate plantings and shrubs.  Shrubs shall be placed a 
minimum of 3 feet on center. 

2. The applicant has also applied for a variance to create a flag lot.  All conditions 
approved with the variance must also be adhered to.  Staff’s recommended 
conditions for the reference include the following: 

a. The access easement located within the pole portion of the subject 
parcel shall be treated as City Street, requiring 1 caliper inch of tree 
for every 15 feet of frontage on either side of the easement, with 
each tree having a minimum of 2 caliper inches.  

b. Sidewalks shall be required along both sides of the access 
easement located within the pole portion of the subject parcel and 
connect to both Business Center Drive, and to planned walkways 
within the development.  

 
2 | P a g e  

 



 

 

Exhibits 

1. Staff Report 

2. Aerial Map 

3. Zoning Map 

4. Future Land Use Map 

5. Notification Map 

6. Notification List 

7. Applicant Packet 

3 | P a g e  

 



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Summary of Request 

The parent tract includes approximately 9.4 acres, of which the applicant is requesting 
approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for a Nursing/Convalescent Home 
on approximately 4.3 acres.  According to the applicant’s letter of intent, the facility; The 
Medical Resort, will include approximately 54,000 square feet, which will incorporate a 
Colonial Spanish design with tile rooftops and exterior stucco.  The Medical Resort will 
provide personalized care to meet individual needs of patients in a hotel environment, 
with restaurant services in addition to medical and therapy services.  A patient’s stay at 
the facility will range from 21 to 30 days depending upon individual needs.  The facility 
will include a total of 101 rooms, of which 73 will be private and 28 dual rooms; with 
private bathrooms, medical equipment, and a 2,000 square foot gym with an outdoor 
therapy area.  The applicant also proposes 3 sites for future development of separate, 
non-residential uses. 

Site History 

The subject property is currently undeveloped. The property was annexed into the City 
of Pearland in 1996.  Prior to the adoption of the Unified Development Code in 2006, 
the property was dually zoned Suburban Development Residential District (SD) and 
Low Density Single Family (R-1).  In 2006 the Business Park-288 zoning district was 
created and applied to the subject property. 

With the exception of the single family subdivision to the west; Southgate Estates, the 
site is surrounded by undeveloped properties located within non-residential zoning 
districts and/or non-residential/ mixed use Planned Developments (PDs).  Directly north 
of the site is an undeveloped tract located within the Business Park 288 (BP-288) 
zoning district.  Further north is the Pearland Town Center PD; a mixed use PD.  The 
property to the south is located within the Business Center Drive PD; a non-residential 

Exhibit 1 
Staff Report 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

1 | P a g e  

 



 

PD.  The property on the east side of Business Center Drive is undeveloped and zoned 
BP-288. 

 

The below table identifies surrounding uses and zoning districts: 

 Zoning Land Use 
North Business Park 288 (BP-288) Undeveloped Commercial 
South Business Center Planned Development Undeveloped Commercial 
East Business Park 288 (BP-288) Undeveloped Commercial 
West Single Family Residential-2 (R-2) Southgate Estates 

 

Conformance with the Unified Development Code 

The property is located within the Business Park-288 (BP-288) zoning district, which is 
intended to permit large office complexes/campuses and retail development in locations 
with good in locations with good visibility and roadway access.  The BP-288 zoning 
district also permits uses (such as the proposed Nursing/Convalescent Home) with 
approval of a CUP, which may be suitable in certain locations and/or with certain 
conditions.  A plat including 4 lots and approximately 2 acres for detention is proposed.  
The applicant is seeking a variance to reduce the lot width of the proposed Lot 4.  The 
Nursing/Convalescent Home will be located on a 4.3 acre lot, identified as Lot 1, and 
will meet the requirements of the BP-288 zoning district as it relates to the area 
regulations.  The lot area regulations are listed below.  It is important to note that the 
plat nor the variance have been approved. 

 BP-288 
Requirement 

Subject Property 

Minimum Lot Size 43,560 sf (1 acre) 4.3338 Acres 

Minimum Lot Width 150 ft. 445.48 ft. 

Minimum Lot Depth 200 ft. 351.03 ft. 

 

The applicant proposes 2.20023 acres for detention located on the western boundary of 
the site, which will be approximately 176 feet deep and nearly 500 feet wide.  The BP-
288 zoning district requires detention facilities to be incorporated as an amenity, such 
as a lake or pond.  Other amenities for detention facilities include aesthetic or other 
characteristics that increase its visual desirability, including recreational facilities, 
landscaping or large trees.   

2 | P a g e  

 



 

The detention facility will be an expansion of the existing Channel A-124-05-00, and will 
be dedicated to Brazoria County Drainage District Number 4.  Brazoria County Drainage 
District prohibits wet and amenitized detention facilities.  Although the proposed 
detention will not be incorporated into the development as a lake or pond, the applicant 
proposes a screening wall which will meet the requirements of the UDC.  Staff also 
recommends an opaque tree line along the proposed screening wall for visual appeal. 

Conformance with the Comprehensive Plan 

The subject property is located within the Business Park Future Land Use designation.  
According to the Comprehensive Plan, the area is generally encompassing of the SH 
288 corridor and portions of Beltway 8 nearest SH 288.  The Comprehensive Plan 
indicates a mixed use area developed in coordinated, master-planned campus-like 
settings with interdependent and complimentary uses.  Preferred uses include office 
buildings of various heights, regional shopping centers and malls, research and 
development facilities and light manufacturing.  The proposed development will be in 
compliance with, and meets the intent of the Business Park Future Land Use 
designation; and will continue to provide for a mix of uses that are planned or developed 
for the area.  The location of the property lends itself for a mix of non-residential uses, 
as indicated by the Comprehensive Plan. 

Conformance with the Thoroughfare Plan 

The property has frontage on Business Center Drive; a secondary thoroughfare of 
sufficient width, which requires 100 feet of right-of-way.  

Platting Status 

A plat is currently under review for the subject 9.4 acre site.  Four (4) lots and an 
approximately 2 acre site located along the western property line, adjacent to the 
existing single family subdivision, will be used for detention.  Three (3) of the proposed 
lots; Lots 2-4 will have frontage on Business Center Drive.  The applicant has requested 
a variance from the Planning and Zoning Commission to reduce the lot width of the 
proposed Lot 4 from 150 feet, as required within the BP-288 zoning district, to 145.42 
feet.   The proposed Nursing/Convalescent Home will be constructed on 4.3 acres, 
identified as Lot 1; a flag lot.  

Availability of Utilities 

The subject property has access to public infrastructure. According to GIS records, 
there is an existing 12 inch water line along the west side of Business Center Drive.  
Additionally, there is an existing 10 inch sewer line along the west side of Business 
Center Drive. The developer will be responsible to extend services to the site.  

 
3 | P a g e  

 



 

Impact on Existing and Future Development 

The subject property is surrounded by commercial uses and/or zoning districts on three 
sides, most of which has yet to be developed; however, some developments are 
planned within the area, including various non-residential uses located within the 
Business Park PD, just south of the subject property. There is a single family 
subdivision just west of the site, which will be separated from the subject property via a 
176-foot wide detention pond and a 60-foot drainage easement, for a total of 236-foot 
separation, which will provide a sufficient buffer between the non-residential use and the 
existing single family subdivision.  Therefore, there should be no adverse impacts. 

Additional Comments 

The request has been reviewed by the City’s Development Review Committee (DRC), 
and there were no additional comments from other departments at the time of this 
report. 

Public Notification 

Staff sent public notices, comment forms and a vicinity map to the applicant, the owner 
of the property and to property owners within 200 feet of the subject property under 
consideration for the CUP.  Additionally, a legal notice of the public hearing was 
published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign was placed on the property by 
the applicant.   

Opposition to or Support of Proposed Request 

As of the date of this writing, staff has not received any comments either in opposition to 
or in support of the proposed CUP to allow a Nursing/Convalescent Home.   

Recommendation  

Staff recommends approval of the CUP 2014-09 to allow for a Nursing/Convalescent 
Home on the approximately 4.3 acre site, following reasons: 

1. The proposed use will be in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan, with 
approval of the CUP, and meets the intent of the Business Park Future Land Use 
designation.  The location of the property lends itself for a mix of non-residential 
uses, as indicated by the Comprehensive Plan, and will continue to provide for a 
mix of uses that are planned or developed for the area.   

2. There should be no major impacts to the single family residential subdivision to 
the west, as it will be separated from the proposed development via a 176-foot 
wide detention pond and a 60-foot drainage easement, for a total of 236-foot 
separation, which will provide a sufficient buffer between the non-residential use 
and the existing single family subdivision. 

4 | P a g e  

 



 

3. Approval of the CUP will not have a negative impact on the existing character of 
the neighborhood. The subject property is surrounded by commercial uses 
and/or zoning districts on three sides with a single family subdivision to the west, 
with an over 200 foot buffer.   

4. The undeveloped site will conform to all requirements and policies of the UDC, 
with the exception of the amenitized detention facility located along the western-
most boundary.  However, a screening wall is proposed and staff recommends a 
tree-line with shrubs along the screening wall.  All other requirements of the UDC 
will ensure an aesthetically appealing development, including compliance with 
screening/fencing, lighting, height, buffering, landscaping and parking 
requirements.  

Conditions of Approval 

1. In addition to the proposed screening wall, staff recommends a vegetative 
screen, on the east side of the proposed screening wall (within the proposed 30-
foot buffer) to provide a visual screen from the proposed wall.  The vegetative 
screen shall incorporate plantings and shrubs.  Shrubs shall be placed a 
minimum of 3 feet on center. 

2. The applicant has also applied for a variance to create a flag lot.  All conditions 
approved with the variance must also be adhered to.  Staff’s recommended 
conditions for the reference include the following: 

a. The access easement located within the pole portion of the subject 
parcel shall be treated as City Street, requiring 1 caliper inch of tree 
for every 15 feet of frontage on either side of the easement, with 
each tree having a minimum of 2 caliper inches.  

b. Sidewalks shall be required along both sides of the access 
easement located within the pole portion of the subject parcel and 
connect to both Business Center Drive, and to planned walkways 
within the development.  

 

 

 

5 | P a g e  

 



CR 59

SH 288 S
SH 288 N

BUSINESS CENTER DR

HARRIS AVE

GRIMES AVE

CARSON AVE

MADISON DRSOUTHGATE DR

FREESTONE AVE

BRISCOE LN

DAWSON RD

SH
 28

8 F
NT

G 
S

SH 288 FNTG N

ARMSTRONG LN

EDWARDS AVE

KAUFMAN AVE

11200

2902

1120011200 3133

3251

3006 17717

3239

3149

17667

3143

2930 3110

3209

3207

3201

3251
3251

11101

3502

11101

3505

3133

3603

3503

3501

3401
11302

11203

3407

3602

3504

3616

3143

340911208

3406

3142

11201

3513

3149

3604
3601

11202
11201

11202

11201

3501 11111

11204

11401
11402

11204

11402
11401

3149

11301

11102

3408

11218

3502

11203

3505

11409

3501

3404

3501
3503

11213

3146

1402

11102

11102

1402

3512

11103

3404
3402

11402
11401

3406

3602 3507
3509
3511

3505

3612

3408

3610

11501

3403

3506

3606

11211

3608

3407

3604

3405

11311 11205

11304

11209
11207

3614

11112

11215
11213

11401

11217

1110311206

11301
113031130711305

3403

11411

11402

11411

11408

11311

11201

11411

11311

11403

3503

11403

11110

11405

11409

11410

11216

11410

11312

11312

11409

11403

11304

11304

11108
11403

1141211410

11401

11303

11410

11303

11407

11404

11216
11409

1141411412 1130111215
11410

11409

11202

11409

11409

11306

11108

11202

11214

11404

11206

11106

11212

11410

1121011208

11206

11211

11210

11108

11407
11202

3401

11108

1120811214

11210

11204

11211

11202

11212
11208

11102

11212

11109

11410

11210
11403

11404

11408
11206

11211

11402

11214

11407
11207
11204

11106

11209

11109

11202

11216

11108

11215
11216

11106

11502

11201

11107

11406

11211

11412

11210

11210

11205
11208

11206

11212 11202

11408

11414

3139 3138

3000
AERIAL MAP

CUP 2014-09

WEST OF BUSINNESS 
CENTER DR, NORTH 
OF CR 59, & SOUTH OF 
PEARLAND TOWN 
CENTER

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 562 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE



PUD

R-2

BP-288
SD

RE

CR 59

SH 288 S
SH 288 N

BUSINESS CENTER DR

HARRIS AVE

GRIMES AVE

CARSON AVE

MADISON DRSOUTHGATE DR

FREESTONE AVE

BRISCOE LN

DAWSON RD

SH
 28

8 F
NT

G 
S

SH 288 FNTG N

ARMSTRONG LN

EDWARDS AVE

KAUFMAN AVE

11200

2902

1120011200 3133

3251

3006 17717

3239

3149

17667

3143

2930 3110

3209

3207

3201

3251
3251

11101

3502

11101

3505

3133

3603

3503

3501

3401
11302

11203

3407

3602

3504

3616

3143

340911208

3406

3142

11201

3513

3149

3604
3601

11202
11201

11202

11201

3501 11111

11204

11401
11402

11204

11402
11401

3149

11301

11102

3408

11218

3502

11203

3505

11409

3501

3404

3501
3503

11213

3146

1402

11102

11102

1402

3512

11103

3404
3402

11402
11401

3406

3602 3507
3509
3511

3505

3612

3408

3610

11501

3403

3506

3606

11211

3608

3407

3604

3405

11311 11205

11304

11209
11207

3614

11112

11215
11213

11401

11217

1110311206

11301
113031130711305

3403

11411

11402

11411

11408

11311

11201

11411

11311

11403

3503

11403

11110

11405

11409

11410

11216

11410

11312

11312

11409

11403

11304

11304

11108
11403

1141211410

11401

11303

11410

11303

11407

11404

11216
11409

1141411412 11301
11215

11410
11409

11202

11409

11409

11306

11108

11202

11214

11404

11206

11106

11212

11410

11210
11208

11206

11211

11210

11108

11407
11202

3401

11108

1120811214

11210

11204

11211

11202

11212
11208

11102

11212

11109

11410

11210
11403

11404

11408

11211

11402

11207
11204

11106

11209

11109

11202

11216

11108

11215
11216

11106

11502

11201

11107

11406

11211

11412

11210

11210

11205
11208

11206

11212 11202

11408

11414

3139 3138

3000
ZONING MAP

CUP 2014-09

WEST OF BUSINNESS 
CENTER DR, NORTH 
OF CR 59, & SOUTH OF 
PEARLAND TOWN 
CENTER

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 562 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE



Business Park

Medium Density Residential

Retail, Offices and Services

CR 59

SH 288 S
SH 288 N

BUSINESS CENTER DR

HARRIS AVE

GRIMES AVE

CARSON AVE

SOUTHGATE DR

FREESTONE AVE

BRISCOE LN

ARMSTRONG LN

EDWARDS AVE

KAUFMAN AVE

11200

2902

1120011200 3133

3251

3006 17717

3239

3149

17667

3143

2930 3110

3209

3201

3207

3251
3251

11101

3502

11101

3505

3133

3603

3503

3501

3401
11302

11203

3407

3602

3504

3616

3143

340911208

3406

3142

11201

3513

3149

3604
3601

11202
11201

11202

11201

3501 11111

11204

11401
11402

11204

11402
11401

3149

11301

11102
11218

3502

11203

3505

11409

3501

3404

3501
3503

11213

3146

1402

11102

11102

1402

3512

11103

3404
3402

11402
11401

3602 3507
3509
3511

3505

3612
3610

3403

3405

3506

3606

11211

3608

3407

3604

3405

11311 11205
11209
11207

3614

11112

11215
11213

11401

11217

11103

11301
113031130711305

11411

11402

11411

11408

11311

11201

11411

11311

11403

3503

11403

11110

11405

11409

11410

11216

11410

11312

11312

11409

11403

11304

11304

11108
11403

1141211410

11401

11303

11410

11303

11407

11404

11216
11409

1141411412 1130111215
11410

11409

11202

11409

11409

11306

11108

11202

11214

11404

11206

11106

11212

11410

1121011208

11206

11211

11106

11210

11108

11407
11202

3401

11108

1120811214

11210

11204

11211

11202

11212
11208

11102

11212

11109

11210
11403

11305

11404

11408

11308

11206

11211

11402

11214

11208

11407
11207
11204

11106

11209

11109

11202

11216

11108

11215

11308

11216

11106

11502

11201

11107

11406

11211

11412

11210

11210

11206

11205
11208

11206

11212 11202

11408

11414

3139 3138

3000
FLUP MAP

CUP 2014-09

WEST OF BUSINNESS 
CENTER DR, NORTH 
OF CR 59, & SOUTH OF 
PEARLAND TOWN 
CENTER

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 562 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE



CR 59

SH 288 S
SH 288 N

BUSINESS CENTER DR

HARRIS AVE

GRIMES AVE

CARSON AVE

MADISON DR

FREESTONE AVE

BRISCOE LN

DAWSON RD

SH
 28

8 F
NT

G 
S

SH 288 FNTG N

ARMSTRONG LNKAY LN

S ROYCE CIR

EDWARDS AVE

KAUFMAN AVE

2902

11200

177173006

11200 3251

2930

3239

1120011200 3133

3149

17667

3110

3209

3207

3143

3251
3251

11101

3502

11101

3505

3603

3503

3501

3401
11302

11203

3407

3602

3504

3616

3143

3409

3131

11208

3406

3142

11201

3513

3149

3604
3601

11202
11201

11202

11201

3501 11111

11204

11401
11402

11204

11402
11401

3149

11301

11102

3408

11218

3502

11203

3505
3501

3404

3501
3503

11213

3146

1402

11102

11102

1402

3201

3512

11103

3404
3402

11402
11401

3406

3602

3135

3507
3509
3511

3505

3612

3408

3610

3403

3506

3606

11211

3608

3407

3604

3405

11311 11205

11304

11209
11207

3614

11112

11215
11213

11401

11217

1110311206

11301
113031130711305

3403

11402

11411

11408

11311

11201

11411

11311

11403

3503

11411

11403

11110

11405

11409

11410

11216

11410

11312

11312
11409

11403

11304

11304

11108
11403

11409

11412
11410

11401

11303

11410

11303

11407

11404

11216

11409
11412 113011121511410

11409

11202

11409

11409

11306

11108

11202

11214

11404

11206

11404

11106

11212

11410

1121011208

11206

11211

11210

11108

11407

11104

11202

11405

3401

11108

1120811214

11210

11204

11211

11202

11212
11208

11102

11212

11109

11210

11408

11404

11408
11206

11211

11402

11214

11407
11207

11204

11106

11209

11109

11202

11216

11108

11215
11216

11106

11201

11107

11406

11211

11412

11210

11407

11410

11210

11401

11205
11208

11206

11212 11202

11405

11408

3103

31343139

2714
NOTIFICATION MAP

CUP 2014-09

WEST OF BUSINNESS 
CENTER DR, NORTH 
OF CR 59, & SOUTH OF 
PEARLAND TOWN 
CENTER

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 562 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE



PROPERTY OWNER ADDRESS SUITE CITY
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOC 14221 DALLAS PKWY STE 200 DALLAS
FISHMAN GEORGE & MARY 3406 HAMPSHIRE ST PEARLAND
GRIMM BILL & TIFFANY 11201 FREESTONE AVE PEARLAND
HARVISON MELINDA 3407 KERR LN PEARLAND
JONES LEWIS & LEWIS-JONES SHANTEL 11201 GRIMES AVE PEARLAND
LINDQUIST PAMELA M 11204 HARRIS AVE PEARLAND
LOTT REUBEN D & MERCHANT ERMA 11204 GRIMES AVE PEARLAND
PARKSIDE 59/288 LTD 3003 W ALABAMA ST HOUSTON
PLANT DALE W & JAN W 11202 HARRIS AVE PEARLAND
RIDDLE SIMONE 3401 KERR LN PEARLAND
SOMERVILLE ERNEST 3405 KERR LN PEARLAND
SOUTHGATE COMMUNITY ASSOC PO BOX 3217 PEARLAND
STRIPAY MARK 3409 KERR LN PEARLAND
SUFFEL DAVID & TERESA MOREY 11203 FREESTONE AVE PEARLAND
TRAN DANNY T & CELINE P 3403 KERR LN PEARLAND
VIRANI AHMADALI 2814 ACORN WOOD WAY HOUSTON
WEEMS F CARRINGTON 1603 W CLAY ST HOUSTON
WILLIAMS HEZRON V & BERNADETTE 11203 GRIMES AVE PEARLAND
YLT 288 PARTNERS 5855 SOVEREIGN DR STE B HOUSTON
BGE KERRY R. GILBERT & ASSOCIATES 23501 CINCO RANCH BLVD. STE A-250 KATY



STATE ZIP
TX 75254
TX 77581
TX 77584
TX 77584
TX 77584
TX 77584
TX 77584
TX 77098
TX 77584
TX 77584
TX 77584
TX 77588
TX 77584
TX 77584
TX 77584
TX 77059
TX 77019
TX 77584
TX 77036
TX 77494



0 20 40 80

SHEET:

SHEET TITLE:

DATE:

REVISIONS:

C 2014 PI ARCHITECTS, INC. 

tcrpi a citeh s

NOT FOR BIDDING, PERMIT,
OR CONSTRUCTION

PURPOSES

PROJECT NUMBER:

1

DEVELOPMENT SITE PLAN

Scale 1" = 40'-0"

NOTE: BEWARE: UNDERGROUND UTILITIES IN PLACE, INCLUDING ELECTRICAL, GAS, WATER, SEWER, TELEPHONE, AND OTHERS.  CONSULT PROJECT

ENGINEER PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. ALL UTILITIES TO BE FLAGGED AND IDENTIFIED. LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITY.

THIS DRAWING, AS AN INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE, IS AND SHALL REMAIN THE

PROPERTY OF PI ARCHITECTS AND SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED, PUBLISHED

OR USED IN ANY WAY WITHOUT THE PERMISSION OF PI ARCHITECTS

CONDITIONAL
USE 
SITEPLAN

L1
OF:  1

14010

10/02/14

DRAWINGS
PRELIMINARY

PE
A

RL
A

N
D

, T
EX

A
S 

M
ED

IC
A

L 
CA

M
PU

S
PE

A
RL

A
N

D

SA

ET

S
TA 12

OF

3 2
ET

X

BR
YA

N  C.  WARN
E













































 

 

B. Planning and Zoning Variance No. 

2014-05 

A request by Luther Daly of Costello, Inc., applicant; on behalf 

of George and Mary Fishman, owner; for approval of a Planning 

and Zoning Variance to allow for a flag lot within the existing 

Business Park 288 (BP-288) zoning district on 9.4083 acres of 

land 



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

   

 

 
 
 
 

P&Z AGENDA REQUEST  
 
 

TO:    Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
REQUESTOR:   Luther Daly of Costello, Inc. 
 
DATE:    12/09/2014 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: Planning and Zoning Variance 2014-05 

 

 

     Old Business          New Business     Discussion Item    Workshop 
 

Summary:  A request by Luther Daly of Costello, Inc., applicant; on behalf of George 
and Mary Fishman, owner; for approval of a Planning and Zoning Variance to allow for a 
flag lot within the existing Business Park 288 (BP-288) zoning district on 9.4083 acres of 
land. 
 
The item was originally postponed from the October 20, 2014 regular meeting of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission.  The Commission asked to postpone the proposed 
flag lot approval until the developer determined whether the lot layout for the 
development would need to be altered due to the denial of P&Z Variance 2014-04.  The 
applicant has since reconfigured the lot layout with the proposed flag lot remaining as 
originally proposed.  
 
Staff Analysis: The proposed flag lot meets the definition of a flag lot as stated in the 
UDC and is therefore eligible for a Planning and Zoning Variance. Staff recommends the 
following condition if the proposed flag variance is approved: 

  
1.  The access easement located within the pole portion of the subject parcel shall 

be treated as a City Street, requiring 1 caliper inch per each 15 feet of frontage 
on either side of the easement, with each tree having a minimum of 2 caliper 
inches.  

 
2.  Sidewalks shall be required along both sides of the access easement located 

within the pole portion of the subject parcel and connect to both Business 
Center Drive, and to planned walkways within the development. 

 

 



P&Z 10/20/2014 
P&Z Variance 2014-05 

Page 1 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING OF OCTOBER 20, 2014 

PLANNING AND ZONING VARIANCE NO. 2014-05 

A request by Luther Daly of Costello, Inc., applicant; on behalf of George and Mary 
Fishman, owner; for approval of a Planning and Zoning Variance to allow for a flag 
lot within the existing Business Park 288 (BP-288) zoning district on 9.4083 acres 
of land, on the following described property, to wit: 

Legal Description: Being a subdivision of 9.4083 acres of land located in the 
H.T.& B.R.R. Company Survey, Abstract 300, Brazoria County, Texas.   

General Location: Located on the west side of Business Center Drive, south of 
Pearland Town Center. 

SUMMARY:  The applicant is proposing to subdivide the 9.4083 acre tract into 4 lots and 
1 detention reserve, to be developed as a Medical and Continuing Care 
campus.  The current proposal calls for 4 lots all to have direct access to 
Business Center Drive.  To do so, Lot 1, located at the rear is proposed to be a flag 
lot with a minimum frontage on Business Center Drive of 50 feet and a pole depth of 
300 feet.  The flag portion of the lot will have a width of 445.48, a depth of 371.03, and 
overall area of 4.3381 acres.   

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE: GENERAL COMMERCIAL (GC): The below table 
illustrates the lot dimension requirements of the BP-288 zone versus the proposed lot 
dimensions. As indicated, the proposed lot width of Lot 4 does not currently meet the 
minimum requirements of the BP-288 zone. The applicant is also seeking a lot width 
variance (P&Z Variance Application Number 2014-04). 

Area Regulations:  R‐E (Single‐Family Estate District) 

Size of Lots  Required   Proposed 

a) Minimum Lot Area 1 Acre  1.0017 Acres 

b) Minimum Lot Width
150 Feet 

50 Feet (Pole) 
445.48 Feet (Flag) 

c) Minimum Lot Depth
200 Feet 

300 Feet (Pole) 
371.03 Feet (Flag_ 

The Unified Development Code (UDC) defines a flag lot as a lot which has frontage and 
width at the building line that is less than the minimum required width.  Flag lots in non-



 
 

P&Z 10/20/2014 
P&Z Variance 2014-05 

Page 2 
 

residential and mixed-use zoning districts shall be permitted upon approval by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission, provided that such lots shall have a minimum frontage 
of 50 feet.  The proposed flag lot meets the definition of a flag lot as stated in UDC, and 
is therefore eligible for a Planning and Zoning Variance.  
 
PLATTING STATUS:  The property is in the process of platting.  The proposed variance 
is required prior to staff approval of the plat.  
 
CONFORMANCE TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The Comprehensive Plan 
recommends “Business Park” for the subject and surrounding properties. The current 
zoning of BP-288 is in conformance with the future land use designation.  .   
 
CONFORMANCE TO THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property has frontage 
on Business Center Drive which is a secondary thoroughfare with sufficient right-of-way 
width of 100 feet. 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS: The proposed flag lot meets the definition of a flag lot as stated in 
the UDC and is therefore eligible for a Planning and Zoning Variance. Staff recommends 
the following condition if the proposed flag variance is approved: 
  

1. The access easement located within the pole portion of the subject parcel shall be 
treated as a City Street, requiring 1 caliper inch per each 15 feet of frontage on 
either side of the easement, with each tree having a minimum of 2 caliper inches.  
 

2. Sidewalks shall be required along both sides of the access easement located 
within the pole portion of the subject parcel and connect to both Business Center 
Drive, and to planned walkways within the development.  

 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  

 Zoning Map 
 Future Land Use Plan 
 Aerial Map 
 Application Package 

 
 

 
 



PUD

R-2

BP-288

SD

CR 59

SH
 288 S

SH
 288 N

C
R

 94

B
U

SIN
ESS C

EN
TER

 D
R

M
A

D
ISO

N
 D

R

GRIMES AVE

HARRIS AVE

BRISCOE LN

DAWSON RD

SH
 288 FN

TG
 N

FREESTONE AVE

ARMSTRONG LN

SH
 2

88
 R

A
M

P

EDWARDS AVE

K
A

U
FM

A
N

 AVE

ZONING MAP

P&Z Variance 2014-05

Business Center Dr.
South of Pearland 
Town Center

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 544 feet
OCTOBER 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Text

SITE



Business Park

Medium Density Residential

Retail, Offices and Services

Low Density Residential

CR 59

SH 288 S
SH 288 N

CR 94

BUSINESS CENTER DR

MADISON DR

GRIMES AVE

HARRIS AVE

BRISCOE LN

DAWSON RD

SH 288 FNTG N
FREESTONE AVE

EDWARDS AVE

FLUP MAP

P&Z Variance 2014-05

Business Center Dr.
South of Pearland 
Town Center

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 544 feet
OCTOBER 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

TextSITE



CR 59

SH 288 S
SH 288 N CR 94

BUSINESS CENTER DR

MADISON DR

GRIMES AVE

HARRIS AVE

BRISCOE LN

DAWSON RD

SH 288 FNTG N
FREESTONE AVE

ARMSTRONG LN

SH
 28

8 R
AM

P

EDWARDS AVE

KAUFMAN AVE

AERIAL MAP

P&Z Variance 2014-05

Business Center Dr.
South of Pearland 
Town Center

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 544 feet
OCTOBER 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

TextSITE













 

 

IV. New Business 
 

 



 

 

A. Zone Change Application 

No. 2014-21Z 

A request of Alan Mueller, applicant; on behalf of Joe and 

Darlene Laney and John McMahan, owners; for approval of a 

zoning designation of Single Family - 1 (R-1) on approximately 

32.3 acres of land 



 
 

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING 
THE CITY COUNCIL CITY AND THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF 

THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, 
MONDAY, DECEMBER 15, 2014, AT 6:30 P.M. 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS - CITY HALL-3519 LIBERTY DRIVE 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. PURPOSE OF HEARING 

 
Zone Change Application No. 2014-21Z 
 
A request of Alan Mueller, applicant; on behalf of Joe and Darlene Laney and 
John McMahan, owner; for approval of a zoning designation of Single Family - 1 
(R-1) on approximately 32.3 acres of land, more specifically described as: 
 
Legal Description: The East one half (1/2) of the Southeast Quarter (SE ¼) of the 
Northeast Quarter (NE ¼) of Section 84, H.T.& B.R.R. Survey, Abstract No. 538, 
Brazoria County, Texas and being the same land conveyed to B. Frank Wood by 
Jay C. Tulk by Deed dated April 11, 1955, Recorded in Volume 627, Page 278, 
Deed Records, Brazoria County, Texas and; 
 
The West one half (1/2) of the Southeast Quarter (SE ¼) of the Northeast 
Quarter (NE ¼) of Section 84, H.T.& B.R.R. Survey, Abstract No. 538, called 
Tract No. 8, Brazoria County, Texas according to the recorded map or plat therof 
appearing of record in the office of the County Clerk of Galveston County, Texas 
and being the same land described from J.T. McMahan to R. D. McMahan, dated 
October 27, 1964, recorded in Volume 895, Page 22, Deed Records of Brazoria 
County, Texas and being that same 20 acres more or less, conveyed to John T. 
McMahan by R.D. McMahan and wife, Eunice McMahan, by Deed dated 
December 29, 1994, Filed of Record March 13, 2003, recorded under Brazoria 
County Clerks File No. 03 015336, and; 
 
A 2.72 acre tract, being the remainder of two (2) 1.5 acre tracts, recorded in 
Volume (87) 403, Page 70 [Tract 1] and Volume (87) 403, Page 73 [Tract 2], of 
the Official Records of Brazoria County, Texas, out of the North ½ of the East ½ 
of the Southeast ¼ of the Northeast ¼ of section 84, of the H.T.& B. Railroad 
Company Survey, Abstract 538, Brazoria County, Texas. 
 
General Location:  West of County Road 48 and 2000 feet south of Broadway 
St., Pearland, TX 
 

Page 1 of 2 – 11/17/2014    
 



III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY 
 
A. STAFF REPORT 
B. APPLICANT PRESENTATION 
C. STAFF WRAP UP 

 
IV. PERSONS WISHING TO SPEAK FOR OR AGAINST THE PROPOSED REQUEST 
 
V. COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION/STAFF DISCUSSION 
 
VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, please call Young 
Lorfing, City Secretary, at 281-652-1655 prior to the meeting so that appropriate 
arrangements can be made. 

 



 

 

Memo 
To:  City Council and Planning and Zoning Commission 

From:  Planning Department 

Date:  December 15, 2014 
 
Re: Zone Change Application Number 2014-21Z 

A request of Alan Mueller, applicant; on behalf of Joe and 
Darlene Laney and John McMahan, owner; for approval of a 
zoning designation of Single Family - 1 (R-1) on approximately 
32.3 acres of land, located West of County Road 48 and 2000 
feet south of Broadway St., Pearland, TX 

Proposal 

The subject property includes approximately 32.3 acres of land; of which approximately 
20 acres is currently zoned Residential Estate (RE) with the remaining 12 acres 
currently being within the City of Pearland’s Extra Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) and is in 
the process of annexation.  The applicant is requesting that the entire 32.3 acre parcel 
be zoned Single Family Residential – 1 (R-1).  According to the applicant’s letter of 
intent, the purpose of the requested change is to allow for a single family residential 
subdivision.  The applicant is also seeking approval from the Planning and Zoning 
Commission of a Cluster Development Plan for this property.  The Cluster Development 
Plan approval would allow for the developer to decrease the lot width from the required 
80 feet down to a proposed mix of 60 and 55 foot wide lots.  

Public Notification/Comment 

Staff sent public notices, comment forms and a vicinity map to the applicant, owner of 
the property, and to property owners within 200 feet of the site.  Additionally, a legal 
notice of public hearing was published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign 
was placed on the property by the applicant. 

As of the date of this writing, staff has not received any returned notices from property 
owners within 200 feet of the site in favor or in opposition to the request. 

Recommendation  

Staff recommends approval of the request for a zoning designation of R-1 for the 
approximately 32.3 acre site for the following reasons: 

 

1 | P a g e  

 



 

1. The change in zoning is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan, as the 
requested zoning of R-1 complies with the Low Density Residential Land Use.   

2. The subject parcel is adjacent to a single family subdivision on three sides which 
is of similar design and scope to the proposed development.   

3. The proposed zone change should not have any negative impacts on the 
surrounding properties.  

4. All requirements of the UDC will be met upon development of the site. 

 

Exhibits 

1. Staff Report 

2. Aerial Map 

3. Zoning Map 

4. Future Land Use Map 

5. Notification Map 

6. Notification List 

7. Applicant Packet 

2 | P a g e  

 



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Summary of Request 

The subject property includes approximately 32.3 acres of land, of which approximately 
20 acres is currently zoned Residential Estate (RE) with the remaining 12 acres 
currently being within the City of Pearland’s Extra Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) and is in 
the process of annexation.  The applicant is requesting that the entire 32.3 acre parcel 
be zoned Single Family Residential – 1 (R-1).  According to the applicant’s letter of 
intent, the purpose of the requested change is to allow for a single family residential 
subdivision.  The applicant is also seeking approval from the Planning and Zoning 
Commission of a Cluster Development Plan for this property.  The Cluster Development 
Plan approval would allow for the developer to decrease the lot width from the required 
80 feet down to a proposed mix of 60 and 55 foot wide lots.  

Site History 

The subject property includes a total of 32.3 acres of mostly undeveloped land.  
Approximately 20 acres of land is currently within the city limits and zoned RE.  The 
remainder (along County Road 48) is in the process of annexation.    

The site is surrounded by residential zoning (PD – R2) to the north, east, and west. The 
property to the south is currently outside of the city limits.  The majority of this property 
appears to be used for large lot residential purposes.  

The below table identifies surrounding uses and zoning districts: 

 Zoning Land Use 
North Planned Development – Residential (Southern 

Trails) 
Single Family Residential 

Subdivision 
South Extra Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) Large Lot Residential 
East Planned Development – Residential (Southern 

Trails) 
Single Family Residential 

Subdivision 
West Planned Development – Residential (Southern 

Trails) 
Single Family Residential 

Subdivision 

Exhibit 1 
Staff Report 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

1 | P a g e  

 



 

 

Conformance with the Unified Development Code 

The property is currently partially developed with a few single family structures located 
in the portion outside of the city limits along CR 48.  The applicant will be seeking 
approval from the Planning and Zoning Commission of a Cluster Development Plan that 
will allow them to reduce the required lots width  of each individual lot to a mix of 60 and 
55 foot wide lots from the required 80 foot width.  All other requirements of the UDC will 
need to be met upon development of the site. 

Conformance with the Comprehensive Plan 

The proposed zoning R-1 on the subject property is in conformance with the future land 
use designation of the Comprehensive Plan which is “Low Density Residential.”  

Conformance with the Thoroughfare Plan 

The property has frontage on County Road 48 (Kingsley Drive); a major thoroughfare of 
with a required width of 120 feet of right-of-way. Additional right-of-way may need to be 
acquired during the platting process.  Internal local roads, constructed to city standards, 
will be built by the developer in order to access the residential subdivision. The 
proposed roads will require a minimum right-of-way of 50 feet.  

Platting Status 

The property has not been platted.  A Preliminary and Final plat will be required prior to 
the issuance of any building permits for the site.  

Availability of Utilities 

The subject property does not currently have access to public infrastructure. Water and 
sewer lines will need to be extended by the developer in order to serve the subject 
property.   

Impact on Existing and Future Development 

The R-1 zone would be considered appropriate for this section of CR 48 (Kingsley) due 
to the existing surrounding uses and based on the future land use plan. The subject 
property is in conformance with the existing Southern Trails Planned Development that 
is adjacent to it on the north, east and west.  During the platting process, a Traffic 
Impact Analysis may be required.  This would determine if any improvements will be 
required to be constructed by the developer to CR 48. Overall, the proposed plan is in 
conformance with the surrounding land uses and is not anticipated to have a negative 
impact on the general area.  

2 | P a g e  

 



 

Additional Comments 

The request has been reviewed by the City’s Development Review Committee (DRC), 
and there were no additional comments from other departments at the time of this 
report. 

Public Notification 

Staff sent public notices, comment forms and a vicinity map to the applicant, the owner 
of the property and to property owners within 200 feet of the subject property under 
consideration for the zone change.  Additionally, a legal notice of the public hearing was 
published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign was placed on the property by 
the applicant.   

Opposition to or Support of Proposed Request 

As of the date of this writing, staff has not received any comments either in opposition to 
or in support of the proposed change in zoning request.   

Recommendation  

Staff recommends approval of the request for a zoning designation of R-1 for the 
approximately 32.3 acre site for the following reasons: 

1. The change in zoning is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan, as the 
requested zoning of R-1 complies with the Low Density Residential Land Use.   

2. The subject parcel is adjacent to a single family subdivision on three sides which 
is of similar design and scope to the proposed development.   

3. The proposed zone change should not have any negative impacts on the 
surrounding properties.  

4. All requirements of the UDC will be met upon development of the site. 

 

3 | P a g e  

 



CR 48

SOUTHERN MANOR DR

CR 967

HONEYSICKLE RD

AERIAL MAP

Zone Change 2014-21Z

West of CR 48

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 377 feet
OCTOBER 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE

Exhibit 2



PUD

CR 48

SOUTHERN MANOR DR

CR 967

HONEYSICKLE RD

ZONING MAP

Zone Change 2014-21Z

West of CR 48

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 377 feet
OCTOBER 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE

Exhibit 3



Parks

Low Density Residential

Minor Nodes

CR 48

SOUTHERN MANOR DR

CR 967

HONEYSICKLE RD

FLUP MAP

Zone Change 2014-21Z

West of CR 48

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 377 feet
OCTOBER 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE

Exhibit 4



PUD

CR 48

SOUTHERN MANOR DR

CR 967

HONEYSICKLE RD

NOTIFICATION MAP

Zone Change 2014-21Z

West of CR 48

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 377 feet
OCTOBER 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE

Exhibit 5



Owner Address City State
SPEZIALE MICHAEL 12804 SOUTHERN VALLEY DR PEARLAND TX
TULLIS STEPHANIE D 12913 SOUTHERN VALLEY DR PEARLAND TX
WASHINGTON TIFFANY R 3302 ORCHARD MILL LN PEARLAND TX
DOWSON THOMAS E 3214 ORCHARD MILL LN PEARLAND TX
BURKS JOHN & MARY 3219 TRAIL HOLLOW DR PEARLAND TX
SNOOK MELANIE A 3512 DESERT MESA RD ROANOKE TX
STODDARD GROUP LTD 14040 WELCH RD DALLAS TX
SUELLO SHEILA B 12912 SOUTHERN VALLEY DR PEARLAND TX
HUCKABY FRANCINE 12910 SOUTHERN VALLEY DR PEARLAND TX
WANG JOANNA HOPE 12902 SOUTHERN VALLEY DR PEARLAND TX
AUGUST ERIN 12906 SOUTHERN VALLEY DR PEARLAND TX
PALMER DEBRA 12904 SOUTHERN VALLEY DR PEARLAND TX
WANG JOANNA HOPE 12902 SOUTHERN VALLEY DR PEARLAND TX
ATCHISON MARTIN V III 12818 SOUTHERN VALLEY DR PEARLAND TX
JESSIE ADRIANNE J 12816 SOUTHERN VALLEY DR PEARLAND TX
LANDRUM STEPHEN 3215 TRAIL HOLLOW DR PEARLAND TX
VU NGUYEN T & LUU T BUI 12814 SOUTHERN VALLEY DR PEARLAND TX
VARNER KELLI 12812 SOUTHERN VALLEY DR PEARLAND TX
BONNEY DIANNE 30329 VALLEY CENTER RD VALLEY CENTER CA
VUONG DANNY D 12808 SOUTHERN VALLEY DR PEARLAND TX
TURNER NATASHA 12911 SOUTHERN VALLEY DR PEARLAND TX
AKANU STANLEY O 12909 SOUTHERN VALLEY DR PEARLAND TX
GARRIS PAUL & JEANA 12907 SOUTHERN VALLEY DR PEARLAND TX
DAVI ANTHONY J 12905 SOUTHERN VALLEY DR PEARLAND TX
RUBERG KEITH P 12903 SOUTHERN VALLEY DR PEARLAND TX
GILLESPIE JOSEPH JR 12901 SOUTHERN VALLEY DR PEARLAND TX
NUANJING CHATUPORN 12811 SOUTHERN VALLEY DR PEARLAND TX
SCHMIDL WILLIAM & XIA LAI 3408 CROSSBRANCH CT PEARLAND TX
HOANG HOAN & LOAN KIEU 12805 SOUTHERN VALLEY DR PEARLAND TX
MARTIN COURTNEY LYNN 12803 SOUTHERN VALLEY DR PEARLAND TX
ZAPATA MARIA 2714 COUNTY ROAD 48 ROSHARON TX
VASQUEZ JOHN G & YOLANDA 2330 COUNTY ROAD 48 ROSHARON TX
MHI PARTNERSHIP LTD 7676 WOODWAY DR HOUSTON TX
MARTINEZ MARLA BEATRIZ 3310 ORCHARD MILL LN PEARLAND TX
ASHIT MOHANLAL 3306 ORCHARD MILL LN PEARLAND TX
PORRAS MARICOR TEOLOGO 3304 ORCHARD MILL LN PEARLAND TX
SNEARL ALICIA WILLIAMS 3308 ORCHARD MILL LN PEARLAND TX
KOLAY SUBRATA & SHARMISTHA 12904 TRAIL HOLLOW CT PEARLAND TX
WOODARD YALE 12905 TRAIL HOLLOW CT PEARLAND TX
MONTALVO LORINDA 3315 TRAIL HOLLOW DR PEARLAND TX
BROWN FRANKLIN E 3316 TRAIL HOLLOW DR PEARLAND TX
ROSS SUSAN 3313 TRAIL HOLLOW DR PEARLAND TX
NIETO ROMAN SR & HORTENCIA 3311 TRAIL HOLLOW DR PEARLAND TX



SCHIELD MELVIN R 2342 COUNTY ROAD 48 ROSHARON TX
MCMAHAN JOHN T 6 HUNTERS RIDGE CT HOUSTON TX
TRAN BANG VAN 10015 GIL JR LN HOUSTON TX
PENNING DUANE E 3309 TRAIL HOLLOW DR PEARLAND TX
WATERS LACY ANN 3307 TRAIL HOLLOW DR PEARLAND TX
SMITH DUSTIN D & LAUREN E 3305 TRAIL HOLLOW DR PEARLAND TX
LAVALLAIS KIMBERLEY M 3303 TRAIL HOLLOW DR PEARLAND TX
BATISTE ERICA 3301 TRAIL HOLLOW DR PEARLAND TX
PETTWAY CIARA 3221 TRAIL HOLLOW DR PEARLAND TX
MCMAHAN JOHN T 6 HUNTERS RIDGE CT HOUSTON TX
FEARNO CHARLOTTE 3217 TRAIL HOLLOW DR PEARLAND TX
PILLAI SIVADASAN 3208 TRAIL HOLLOW DR PEARLAND TX
POOLE RANDE & ELIZABETH 3209 TRAIL HOLLOW DR PEARLAND TX
STEPHENS SAMUEL R 3207 TRAIL HOLLOW DR PEARLAND TX
PANJWANI ABDUL G 3205 TRAIL HOLLOW DR PEARLAND TX
SHEN MINAN & SHAOBO WANG 1676 COOPER RD SCOTCH PLAINS NJ
SITAULA SANTOSH 3203 TRAIL HOLLOW DR PEARLAND TX
NGUYEN ALICE 3201 TRAIL HOLLOW DR PEARLAND TX
TANOUS DAVID K & TIFFANY M 12918 SOUTHERN VALLEY DR PEARLAND TX
WALKER QUENTIN 12916 SOUTHERN VALLEY DR PEARLAND TX
HORAK STEVEN G 2515 COUNTY ROAD 5 WEST COLUMBIA TX
DELEON ARTHUR & ALICIA B 12806 SOUTHERN VALLEY DR PEARLAND TX
FRASER AMY S 3320 ORCHARD MILL LN PEARLAND TX
YARBROUGH SEAN P 3322 ORCHARD MILL LN PEARLAND TX
SCHIELD MELVIN R & DIANNA L 2342 COUNTY ROAD 48 ROSHARON TX
ARCHER CONNIE 3314 TRAIL HOLLOW DR PEARLAND TX
RICHARDSON TIFFANY 3312 TRAIL HOLLOW DR PEARLAND TX
WERTZ SCOTT G & LAURA M 3310 TRAIL HOLLOW DR PEARLAND TX
SMITH ROY ALLEN & JANICE 3308 TRAIL HOLLOW DR PEARLAND TX
TAYLOR CHRISTOPHER EUGENE 3306 TRAIL HOLLOW DR PEARLAND TX
JOHNSON CHAD P & LIESL P 3304 TRAIL HOLLOW DR PEARLAND TX
ALLUMS KIMBERLY K 3216 TRAIL HOLLOW DR PEARLAND TX
VALDEZ SANDRA 3214 TRAIL HOLLOW DR PEARLAND TX
HASTINGS DAVID & BILLISHA 3206 TRAIL HOLLOW DR PEARLAND TX
PALACIOS JOSE & ELVIA 3204 TRAIL HOLLOW DR PEARLAND TX
BROOKS RICKIE 3302 TRAIL HOLLOW DR PEARLAND TX
BRAZORIA COUNTY MUD #34 3200 SOUTHWEST FWY HOUSTON TX



Zip
77584
77584
77584
77584
77584
76262
75244
77584
77584
77584
77584
77584
77584
77584
77584
77584
77584
77584
92082
77584
77584
77584
77584
77584
77584
77584
77584
77581
77584
77584
77583
77583
77063
77584
77584
77584
77584
77584
77584
77584
77584
77584
77584



77583
77024
77075
77584
77584
77584
77584
77584
77584
77024
77584
77584
77584
77584
77584

7076
77584
77584
77584
77584
77486
77584
77584
77584
77583
77584
77584
77584
77584
77584
77584
77584
77584
77584
77584
77584
77027





































 

 

B. Beazer CR 48 Cluster Development 

Plan 

A request by Alan Mueller, applicant; on behalf of Joe and 

Darlene Laney and John McMahan, owner; for approval of a 

Cluster Development Plan, on a 31.127 acre tract of land, for a 

single-family residential subdivision 



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

   

 
 

 

 
   

 

P&Z AGENDA REQUEST  
 
 

TO:    Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
REQUESTOR:   Alan Mueller 

 
DATE:    12/09/2014 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: Cluster Plan – Beazer CR 48 

 

 

 Old Business        New Business     Discussion Item    Workshop 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Summary:  A request by Alan Mueller, applicant; on behalf of Joe and Darlene Laney 
and John McMahan, owners; for approval of a Cluster Development Plan, on a 31.127 
acre tract of land, for a single-family residential subdivision, generally located West of 
County Road 48 and 2000 feet south of Broadway Street.  

 

 
Staff Recommendation:  Approval 

 



 
 

P&Z 12/15/2014 

Beazer CR 48 Cluster Development Plan. 

Page 1 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING OF DECEMBER 15, 2014 
 

 
Beazer CR 48 Cluster Development Plan 
 

A request by Alan Mueller, applicant; on behalf of Joe and Darlene Laney and 
John McMahan, owner; for approval of a Cluster Development Plan, on a 31.127 
acre tract of land, for a single-family residential subdivision, to wit: 
 
Legal Description: The East one half (1/2) of the Southeast Quarter (SE ¼) of 
the Northeast Quarter (NE ¼) of Section 84, H.T.& B.R.R. Survey, Abstract No. 
538, Brazoria County, Texas and being the same land conveyed to B. Frank 
Wood by Jay C. Tulk by Deed dated April 11, 1955, Recorded in Volume 627, 
Page 278, Deed Records, Brazoria County, Texas and; 
 
The West one half (1/2) of the Southeast Quarter (SE ¼) of the Northeast 
Quarter (NE ¼) of Section 84, H.T.& B.R.R. Survey, Abstract No. 538, called 
Tract No. 8, Brazoria County, Texas according to the recorded map or plat therof 
appearing of record in the office of the County Clerk of Galveston County, Texas 
and being the same land described from J.T. McMahan to R. D. McMahan, dated 
October 27, 1964, recorded in Volume 895, Page 22, Deed Records of Brazoria 
County, Texas and being that same 20 acres more or less, conveyed to John T. 
McMahan by R.D. McMahan and wife, Eunice McMahan, by Deed dated 
December 29, 1994, Filed of Record March 13, 2003, recorded under Brazoria 
County Clerks File No. 03 015336, and; 
 
A 2.72 acre tract, being the remainder of two (2) 1.5 acre tracts, recorded in 
Volume (87) 403, Page 70 [Tract 1] and Volume (87) 403, Page 73 [Tract 2], of 
the Official Records of Brazoria County, Texas, out of the North ½ of the East ½ 
of the Southeast ¼ of the Northeast ¼ of section 84, of the H.T.& B. Railroad 
Company Survey, Abstract 538, Brazoria County, Texas. 

 
General Location: West of County Road 48 and 2000 feet south of Broadway 
St., Pearland 
 

  
 
SUMMARY:  The request is for approval of a Cluster Development Plan (CDP) located 
on County Road 48 (CR 48) also known as Kingsley Drive.  The proposed CDP is for a 
total of 31.127acres of land, will contain 99 lots that are a mix of 60 and 55 feet wide, 
and will include the following amenities as required per the CDP standards in the 
Unified Development Code (UDC).   
 

 



 
 

P&Z 12/15/2014 

Beazer CR 48 Cluster Development Plan. 

Page 2 

 

AMENITIES Proposed Cluster 
Open Space: 1.8 acres of open space and park space and 

5.7 acres of amenitized detention (24% of 
total site area) 

Trail: 6 foot wide trail located throughout the 
development and around the central detention 
lake (2840 linear feet)  

Open Space Amenity: Large centralized wet bottom detention area 
with 3 fountains, walking trail, 3 benches 

Park: .7 acres, playground, pavilion 

Project Identification: Entry monument along CR 48 with upgraded 
landscaping 

Landscaping: Minimum 100 shade and ornamental trees 
located within open space and landscape 
reserves.   

 
The proposed CDP will have two (2) direct access points to CR 48 (Kingsley Drive) with 
a proposed street circling the central lake and open space. A masonry subdivision wall 
will be provided along CR 48 with an expanded landscape reserve setback.  
 
A CDP is intended to allow flexibility in lot sizes for the developer and in return the 
applicant shall provide open space and amenities which are not achieved through the 
application of minimum lot standards.  These open spaces and amenities are 
specifically listed as criteria of approval for a CDP, among other criteria listed in the 
Unified Development Code (Section 2.2.4.4, UDC, Criteria of Approval for Cluster 
Development Plans) 
 
The property is partially in the city (approximately 20 acres) and partially in the ETJ 
(approximately 12 acres).  The approximately 20 acres within the city limits is currently 
zoned Residential Estate (RE). The applicant is in the process of annexing the ETJ 
portion into the city limits and rezoning the entire 31.127 acres as Single Family 
Residential – 1 (R-1). The typical proposed lot size for the CDP is a minimum of 55’ X 
125’, and a minimum lot area of 6,875 square feet. The minimum required lot size in the 
R-1 zone is 8,800 square feet, with minimum dimensions of 80’ x 90’; and a residential 
density of 3.2 dwelling units per acre for a CDP.  The density being proposed is 3.18 
dwelling units per acre.  This information is further illustrated in the table below: 
     

Proposed Cluster R-1  
Minimum lot area:  6,875 sq. ft.  8,800 sq. ft.  
Minimum lot width:  55’   80’   
Minimum lot depth:  125’   90’   
Density (units/acre)  3.18   3.2 
 
  
 



 
 

P&Z 12/15/2014 

Beazer CR 48 Cluster Development Plan. 

Page 3 

 

SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES:  
 

  Zoning Land Use 
North Planned Development – 

Residential (Southern Trails) 
Single Family Residential Subdivision 

South Extra Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) Large Lot Residential 

East Planned Development – 
Residential (Southern Trails) 

Single Family Residential Subdivision 

West Planned Development – 
Residential (Southern Trails) 

Single Family Residential Subdivision 

 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE:  The subject property is currently in the process of 
being annexed into the city and a zone change to Single Family Residential - 1 (R-1). If 
approved for this site, a CDP would allow the developer to vary the size of lots as long 
as the overall density of the development does not exceed 3.2 dwelling units per acre, 
as specified in Section 2.2.4.3 of the Unified Development Code.  All other development 
requirements in the Unified Development Code will be required to be met. 
 
PLATTING STATUS:  The subject property has not been platted.  Formal subdivision 
platting will be required prior to development. 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The Future Land Use 
designation for the subject land is Low Density Residential.  The approved 
Comprehensive Plan further indicates that corresponding zones for Low Density 
Residential would be R-2, R-1, and SR-12.  The proposed zoning of R-1 is in 
conformance with the Future Land Use Plan.  The lot sizes within the proposed CDP 
would not be in conformance with the Future Land Use Plan.  
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The property has frontage on 
County Road 48 (Kingsley Drive); a major thoroughfare, with a required width of 120 
feet of right-of-way. Additional right-of-way may need to be acquired during the platting 
process.  Internal local roads, constructed to city standards, will be built by the 
developer in order to access the residential subdivision. The proposed roads will require 
a minimum right-of-way of 50 feet. 
 
AVAILABILITY OF UTILITIES:  The subject property does not currently have access to 
public infrastructure. The property owner is seeking annexation into MUD 34, who will 
provide water and sewer services. 
 
IMPACT ON EXISTING AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT: It is not anticipated that the 
proposed CDP will have a significant negative impact on existing surrounding 
developments or future developments.  Additionally, as the approved CDP meets the 
criteria of approval in the Unified Development Code, there are additional assurances 
that the development should not have a negative impact on existing and future 
development in the area.   



 
 

P&Z 12/15/2014 

Beazer CR 48 Cluster Development Plan. 

Page 4 

 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Beazer CR 48 
Cluster Development Plan, for the following reasons and with the following conditions: 
 

1. The proposed Cluster Development Plan appears to meet the criteria of 
approval in the Unified Development Code. 

 
2. The proposed Cluster Development Plan appears to be compatible with 

surrounding zoning and uses. 
 
3. The proposed Cluster Development Plan does not appear to have any adverse 

impact on surrounding zoning and land uses. 
 

CONDITIONS: 
 

1. Provide a detailed landscape plan with total number of trees, caliper inches for 
each proposed tree, and specific location of plantings.  
 

2. Provide an elevation profile for the proposed masonry fence to be constructed 
along CR 48.  

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  

 Zoning Map 

 Future Land Use Plan 
 Aerial Map 
 Cluster Plan Exhibit 

 



PUDCR 48

SOUTHERN MANOR DR

CR 967

ZONING MAP

Beazer CR 48
Cluster Development 

West of CR 48

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 377 feet
OCTOBER 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE



Low Density Residential

Parks

Minor Nodes

CR 48

SOUTHERN MANOR DR

CR 967

FLUP MAP

Beazer CR 48
Cluster Development 

West of CR 48

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 377 feet
OCTOBER 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE



CR 48

SOUTHERN MANOR DR

CR 967

AERIAL MAP

Beazer CR 48
Cluster Development 

West of CR 48

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 377 feet
OCTOBER 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE

























 

 

C. Discussion Items 

1. Commissioners Activity Report 

2. Comprehensive Plan Update 

3. Next JPH/P&Z Meeting, January 5, 2015 – Regular 

Meeting 



 

 

V. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 


	P&Z Agenda Coversheet
	December 15, 2014 P&Z Agenda
	CONSENT AGENDA
	CONSENT AGENDA ITEM A
	OLD BUSINESS
	OLD BUSINESS ITEM A
	CUP 2014-09, COMBINED FILES
	1. CUP 2014-09, Agenda Request
	2. Pearland PZ detention response_Costello
	140123-2014-10-21-Pearland Medical Resort Preliminary Drainage Comments.pdf
	Page 1
	Page 2


	3. Revised Site Plan
	4. Building Elevations
	5. Building Renderings
	6. Courtyard Area and Building Renderings
	7. Examples of Amenities
	8. JPH Packet
	1. CUP 2014-09, W. of Business Center Drive
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	II. PURPOSE OF HEARING
	III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY

	2. CUP 2014-09, Memo
	3. CUP 2014-09, Staff Report
	4. Aerial Map
	5. Zoning Map
	6. FLUP Map
	7. Notification Map
	8. CUP 2014-09, Notification List
	Results (1)

	9. Site Plan
	10. Applicant Packet
	11. Detention Pond Letter regarding Conditional Use Permit


	OLD BUSINESS ITEM B
	Variance 2014-05 P&Z Packet 12.15.14
	1 Variance 2014-05 Agenda Request
	7 P&Z Packet.pdf
	2 Variance 2014-05-Staff Report.pdf
	3. Zoning Map
	4 FLUP Map
	5 Aerial Map
	6 Applicant Packet
	6 Applicant Packet.pdf
	MYSCAN_20141014_0002
	MYSCAN_20141014_0001



	NEW BUSINESS
	NEW BUSINESS ITEM A
	2014-21Z, West of CR 48, South of Broadway
	1. 2014-21Z, AIS 12.15.14 JPH
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	II. PURPOSE OF HEARING
	III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY

	2. 2014-21Z, Memo 12.15.14 JPH
	3. 2014-21Z, Staff Report 12.15.14 JPH
	4. 2014-21Z, Aerial Map
	5. 2014-21Z, Zoning Map
	6. 2014-21Z, FLUP Map
	7. 2014-21Z, Notification Map
	8. 2014-21Z Notification List
	Results (2)

	9. 2014-21Z, Application Packet

	NEW BUSINESS ITEM B
	Beazer CR 48 Cluster Packet
	1 Beazer CR 48 Cluster  Agenda Request.pdf
	2 Beazer CR 48 Cluster Staff Report
	3 Zoning Map
	4 FLUP Map
	5 Aerial Map
	6 Cluster Application, West of CR 48 and south of Broadway St.

	NEW BUSINESS ITEM C
	ADJOURN MEETING
	ADP9338.tmp
	MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION, CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, MONDAY, DECEMBER 1, 2014, AT 6:30 P.M., HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY DRIVE, PEARLAND, TEXAS
	CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – FINAL PLAT OF RIVERSTONE RANCH AT SECTION 4
	General Location: Southeast of Riverstone Ranch Drive, south of the City of Houston ETJ border, Pearland, TX.
	CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION –MASTER PLAT OF SHADOW GROVE
	CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – PRELIMINARY PLAT OF SHADOW GROVE SECTION 2
	CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – PRELIMINARY PLAT OF SHADOW GROVE SECTION 3
	MATTERS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA
	CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – PRELIMINARY PLAT OF OAKSHIRE SECTION 1
	CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – PLANNING AND ZONING VARIANCE 2014-05
	NEW BUSINESS
	CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – REPLAT OF SHADOW CREEK RANCH SF-57
	PUBLIC HEARING – REPLAT OF SHADOW CREEK RANCH SF-58
	CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – REPLAT OF SHADOW CREEK RANCH SF-58
	DISCUSSION ITEMS


